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Corporate

First Midwest Financial, Inc.

is the holding company for :
First Federal Savings Bank of the Midwest and Security
State Bank. First Federal Savings Bank has its main bank
office in Storm Lake, lowa and its 6 branch offices in a
four-county area of Northwest lowa. It also includes the
2 offices of the Brookings Federal Bank Division in
Brookings, South Dakota, and the lowa Savings Bank
Division in Des Moines, lowa. Security State Bank, with
offices in Stuart, Casey and Menlo, lowa, operates as a
commercial bank chartered by the State of lowa.

The Company’s primary business is marketing financial
deposit and loan products to meet the needs of its retail
bank customers.

LaSalle St. Securities, Inc., operating through First
Services Financial Limited, a subsidiary of First Federal,
offers discount brokerage service and non-insured
investment products.

PrimeVest Investment Center, operating through
Brookings Service Corporation, a subsidiary of First
Services, offers full service brokerage and a wide range
of non-insured investment products.




Financial

Highlights

At September 30 ...........cocoveciennrrcnns 1992 1994 1995 1996

(Dollars in Thousands except Per Share Data)
Total ASSELS ..coevvieereremerniriincnns $171,030  $160,827  $274,115  $264,213  $388,008
Total Loans -..ccccceeeeeerneccecnnnnnnns 74,561 80,224 155,497 178,552 243,534
Total Deposits ........cooremmirinne 147,289 122,813 176,167 171,793 233,406
Stockholders’ equity ......cocoenneeen. 14,970 33,438 34,683 38,013 43,210
Book value per common share .. NA $§ 1682 § 1869 $§ 2119 § 2221
Total equity to assets ............... 8.75% 20.79% 12.65% 14.39% 11.14%
For the Fiscal Year ........cccooocovnnernnns 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996

(Dollars in Thousands except Per Share Data)
Net interest iNCOME. ....uuecerieernrns $4,609 $5,077 $7.,870 $9.405 $ 10,359
Net iNCOME ....c.eeececriirsieecnninns 1,020 1,352 2,729 3,544 2,414
Net income per share ................ N/A $0.66" $ 1.37 $199 § 1.34%
Net vield on interest-earning assets  2.63% 3.21% 3.94% 3.63% 3.47%
Return on average assets ........... S57% .84% 1.29% 1.31% .76%?
Return on average equity .......... 7.08% 7.10% 7.89% 9.86% 6.18%"

(1) Net income per share is based on the assumption that the weighted average shares outstanding at September 30,
1993, were outstanding the entire year.

(2) Reflects the one-time industry-wide special assessment to recapitalize the Savings Association Insurance Fund.
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1995 At the time. af acqulsmon, Iowa Sa#lngs Bank had assets Qf ,prommately $25 mﬂhon. lowa

operates as a Division of First Federal $avmgs Bank of the Midwest. We considered estabhshmg p

Des Moines, the largest market in [owa, asr an effective strategy for the growth of our retail banking operal m. |

entry to- that market th:ough the acquisition of a solid company with good equity, strong management, and ﬁyal
customer base from which to build, helped to establish that presence much quicker. We look forward to ope ;

Towa Savings Bank office in West Des Moines early next year, following remodeling and redecorating;

On September 30, 1996, First Midwest Fmancnal Inc. acquired Security State Bank, the subsidiary of Central West kﬁ

Bancorporation. In conjunction with this acquisition, First Midwest, which was originally formed as a unitary savings . ‘

and loan holding company, was converted to a bank holding company. Security State Bank’s assets at the time of
acquisition were approximately $33 million. As a separate subsidiary of First Midwest, Security State Bank continues
to operate as a commexcial bank chartered by the State of lowa, with offices in Stuart, Casey and Menlo, lowa. Claude
F. Havick continues to serve as President of the bank. The acquisition of Security State Bank by First Midwest
facilitates more flexibility for growth in agriculturat and commercial loans.

f
It was announced on October 18, 1996, that the First Midwest Board of Directors has authorized the Corpany to
repurchase up to 150,000 shares of its qutstanding common stock. The Company intends to repurchase the shares
from time to time, depending upon market conditions, over a twelve month period.

On October 28, 1996, the First Midw(;est Board of Directors accepted the resignation of Steven P. Myers, Vice
Chairman of the Board and Senior Vice President for First Midwest Financial, Inc. and Fitst Federal Savings Bank of
the Midwest. The Company benefitted from his past service.

On November 25, 1996, First Midwest Financial, Inc. announced an increase in the corporation’s quarterly cash k
dividend from 11 cents per share to 13.5 cents per share. In addition, the First Midwest Board declared a 50% stock
dividend, which will pay First Midwest stockholders one share for every two shares held on the record date. Both the
quarterly cash dividend and the stock dividend will be payable on or about January 2, 1997 to stockholders of record
on December 16, 1996. We are pleased tb pay this increased cash dividend and a stock dividend to our stockholders.

OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS Net income for fiscal 1996, after the impact of a

one-time special assessment paid to the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) tq recapitalize the Savings Association Insurance Fund (SAIF), was $2.4 million.
The $795,000 charge, net of tax, resulted from federal legislation passed and signed into law on September 30, 1996,
requiring all SAIF insured institutions to pay a one-time fee of $0.657 for each $100 of insured deposits held on




March 31, 1995 to restore the SAIF to its
statutory reserve level. Without this special
assessment, the Company’s net income for
fiscal 1996 would have totaled $3.2 million,
or $1.78 per share.

Beginning January 1, 1997, First Federal’s
annual deposit insurance premium will be
reduced from $.23 per $100 of insured
deposits to $0.064 per $100. Based on
insured deposits at September 30, 1996, First
Federal will see its annual SAIF expense
reduced from $478,000 to $133,000, result-
ing in after-tax savings of $216,000.

Earnings were enhanced during fiscal 1996 by
a 10% increase in net interest income. This
was due to a significant increase in the Company’s loan portfolio, which resulted from the acquisition of Iowa Savings
Bank, and the increased origination of consumer and agriculture-related loans. Net interest income will continue to be
enhanced in future periods by the acquisition of Security State Bank, which was completed at the end of the fiscal year.

Deposit balances totaled $233.4 million at the close of fiscal 1996, a 36% increase over the previous year. Lending
activity continued to increase during fiscal 1996, with originations of $90.6 million. At September 30, 1996, the loan
portfolio balance totaled $243.5 million, which reflects a $65.0 million increase from the previous year. Total assets at
the end of fiscal 1996 were $388.0 million, compared to $264.2 million a year ago.

Stockholders’ equity at the close of fiscal 1996 totaled $43.2 million, 2 14% increase over the previous year, with
1,945,735 shares issued and outstanding. This increase indicates the Company’s strong earnings performance during
the fiscal year, in spite of the one-time special assessment, and reflects the issuance of additional shares in conjunction
with the acquisition of Security State Bank.

At September 30, 1996, First Federal and Security State Bank both significantly exceeded their regulatory capital
requirements.

LOOKING AHE First Midwest Financial, Inc. continues to look for additional

opportunities to acquire savings banks, commercial banks, and other
related-service companies in our geographic areas. Each opportunity will be carefully evaluated and we will actively
pursue any that we believe have the potential to contribute to increasing value for our stockholders.

With the rapidly expanding uses and availability of electronic technology, customers’ needs and expectations for the
delivery of financial services are also expanding. We will be responsive to any 11rcas of change that are deemed to be
beneficial to the needs of customers and the interests of our stockholders. At the same time, we are committed to
maintaining a competitive position in offering traditional bank products and delivering them with the high level of
quality service our customers have come to expect.

We are confident that our commitment to achieving profitable long term growth will benefit you through a continued
increase in stockholder value, and we appreciate your support.

JAMES S. HaaHR '/%\ L,

Chairman Of The Board, President & CEO
December 12, 1996

Sincer:




First Federal

Creating a more customer-friendly retail

Savings Bank

bank environment and increasing internal OF THE MIDWEST

operating efficiencies have been important on-going objectives for First Federal.
Significant improvements are being seen in each of these areas, due primarily to a
series of capital improvements made over the last couple of years. A major
enhancement to the bank’s data processing system, which was installed during fiscal
year 19935, continues to provide more productive and efficient methods of operation
as management and staff become more adept at various ways to use this
technology. The remodeling and redecorating of the main bank office in Storm
Lake, most of which was completed at the end of last year, and the redecorating of
branch offices which was completed this year, have added comfort and convenience
for retail bank customers and to staff’s efforts to serve them more efficiently.

First Federal’s Agricultural Loan Department continues to compete for quality
loans. Financing and servicing are available for both start up and existing
operations of any size. This includes everything from short term operating loans,
to intermediate term loans for machinery and livestock, to longer term loans for
agricultural real estate. Other types of commercial loan services, in addition to
those for agricultural, are also available at First Federal.

A strong emphasis on consumer loan services, including home equity loans, makes
this particular product an important part of First Federal’s total loan program. In
addition, since consumer loans are used for such a wide range of needs by so many
different customer segments, they are a valuable link to cross selling other bank
products and services.

First Federal continues to offer all areas of home lending, including new
construction, purchase, refinancing, and home improvements, as well as special
assistance loans through the Affordable Housing Program. All loan servicing is
‘done locally. This includes handling payments and responding to customer
questions on their loan and escrow accounts.

First Federal Savings Bank of the Midwest
Main Bank Office: Fifth at Erie, Storm Lake, lowa.




Richard A. Wehde - Vice President - Commercial/Agricultural Loans, visits with Willard
Schmidt and his sons Ryan and Rick Schmidt at their farm near Alta, lowa. The Schmidts farm
700 acres of corn and soybean rotation, and Ryan feeds up to 350 head of cattle per year. First

Federal is pleased to provide financing for their grain and livestock farming operation.

First Federal is pleased to assist
Scott and Amy Bailey with a
mortgage loan for the purchase of
their home in Storm Lake.




STCRM LKt I0OWA

Building Permits

Taxubic Retail Sales

Uneniployment Rate

Deposit customers can satisfy their needs at First Federal with a wide choice of
FDIC-insured accounts. These include the traditional passbook savings account
and the Savings Starter Account for young savers; the First Federal Passcard
Account for statement savings; the Daily Access Account, a money market type
account with limited access by check; the Savings Plus Account, offering a higher
yield for higher balances; and a full range of certificates of deposit.

First Federal’s Trust and Retirement Department has experienced personnel to help
meet customers’ needs in specialized areas. Trust services focus on the professional
administration and management of assets, which includes serving as executor for
estates, and handling agency and conservatorship accounts. In the area of
retirement plans, First Federal trustees tax-deferred IRA, KEO, and SEP plans with
a full range of investment choices. The Trust and Retirement Department staff is
always attentive to any legislative actions that may impact this area of service,
including several enhancements in the area of qualified plans, scheduled to become
effective January 1, 1997.

FIRST SERVICES LaSalle St. Securities, Inc., operat-
FINANCIAL LIMITED in, through First Sorvices

Financial Limited, a subsidiary of First Federal, offers discount brokerage services
and non-insured investment products. This provides bank customers with the
opportunity to expand their use of financial services in addition to traditional bank
products. (These products are not FDIC-insured, nor guaranteed by First Federal
or any affiliates.)

FIRST FEDERAL
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

JAMEs S. HaaHr Chairman of the Board, President ¢ CEO for
First Midwest Financial, Inc., and First Federal Savings
Bank of the Midwest

E. WAYNE COOLEY Executive Secretary, lowa Girls’ High School Athletic
Union, Des Moines, Iowa

E. THURMAN GASKILL Owner, Grain Farming Operation, Corwith, Iowa

J- TYLER HAAHR Partner in the law firm of Lewis and Roca L.L.P.,

Phoenix, Arizona

RODNEY G. MUILENBURG ~ Dairy Specialist, Sioux City Division Purina Mills, Inc.,
Storm Lake, Iowa

Fall 1996 enroliment at Buena Vista University's Storm
Lake campus totals 1,188 students, the highest in the
history of the main campus. Another 1,319 students are
enrolled at BVU Centers throughout lowa. The recently
completed Information Technology Center houses Ballou
Library, Stewart Siebens Computer Center, and distance
education classrooms. Technology links BVU faculty and
students across campus, at BVU Centers, and beyond
campus walls to points around the globe.




Jay Butterfield, Owner - Silk Screen Ink, Storm Lake. Silk Screen Ink
specializes in custom embroidery and screen printing on wearables
and many other promational items. First Federal is proud to provide

commercial checking and lending services to Silk Screen Ink

Matt Korrel enjoys his jet ski
on beautiful Storm Lake. First
Federal provides consumer
loans for most any need.
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Brookings
Division....

of its Bjookings Division and their contribution to the Company’s earnings since
they weﬂ‘eiacquired in the Spring of 1994.

Brookinj % Federal continues their commitment to agricultural lending, the results of
which af

over thel last 2 years. This growth can be attributed to the bank’s active marketing
efforts qu new loan prospects, their competitive posture in structuring loans for

é evidenced by significant growth in their base of agricultural customers

various kypes of ag financing, and their consistency in providing quality customer
service. | Brookings Federal also continues to seek quality commercial loans for any
size busiriess, in addition to those for agricultural and ag-related businesses.

Consumer loans is a very active segment of lending for Brookings Federal.
izing that relationship building is the key toward more profitable customer

househalds, the Brookings Division actively cross sells other consumer banking
services to their consumer loan customers.

N
Brooki g‘p Federal is an active home mortgage lender in their market area, including
constru ﬁon loans and permanent financing, as well as special assistance loans for
first-time| and low-income home buyers. Loan officers at the Brookings Division
have th éxperience to help make the process of home financing a manageable one,

even for first time buyers.

Deposit) ¢ustomers at Brookings Federal have access to a complete line of FDIC-
insured|dccounts including Statement Savings, “Money Market” Savings, Savings
Plus, and certificates of deposit for a variety of rates and terms. Brookings Federal
offers 3| versions of the Timeless Checking Accounf, each designed with features and
benefits to meet the needs of different types of customers.

[ &

[

&

4 | Brookings Federal Bank, a Division of
first Federal Savings Bank of the Midwest, 600
I '+ Main Avenue, Brookings, South Dakota.




James Hemmer {center) and his sons Brad, Jeff, Steve and Mike visit with Steve Almos -
Agricultural Loan Officer, as his grandson Brandon looks on. Their 4,000 acre family farming
operation is located 25 miles south of Brookings and includes 10,000 feeder pigs, 450 stock cows and
1,500 feeder cattle. This is ane of many area farming operations financed by Brookings Federal.

With financing from Brookings Federal,
Don Diebert and Jeff Jacobson - Owners-
Counterparts, Inc. in Brookings, were
able to start a new manufacturing
company that produces metal parts for
information display systems.




South Dakota State University
in Brookings, South Dakota.
1996 Fall enrollment on and off
campus is 8,350.

BROUOKINGS
SOUTH DAKOTA

Average cand Value

BROOKINGS SERVICE
CORPORATION As an enhancement to traditional banking

service, PrimeVest Investment Center, operating through Brookings Service
Building Permits Corporation (a subsidiary of First Services Financial Limited), offers full brokerage
services with a wide range of alternative investment products. (These products are
not FDIC-insured nor guaranteed by First Federal or any affiliates.)

BROOKINGS FEDERAL
Taxahle Retail Sales ADVISORY BOARD

James C. WINTERBOER President, Brookings Federal
O. DALE LARSON Chairman of the Advisory Board
Ouwner, Larson Manufacturing
Unemployment Rate FRED J. RITTERSHAUS Vice Chairman of the Advisory Board

Consulting Engineer and Partner
Banner and Associates, Inc.

VIRGLL G. ELLERBRUCH Assistant Dean of Engineering
South Dakota State University

EARL R. RUE Consulting Manager, Running’s

Mary Jensen - Customer Service Representative at Larson
Manufacturing - participates in Preferred Banking Benefits,
Brookings Federal's special package of banking services for

employees of Larson Manufacturing. The company manu-
factures and distributes a line of energy-saving storm doors.




With the help of a consumer loan from Brookings
Federal, Steve and Kami Jensen - Brookings - are
enjoying their new pickup and camper.

Brookings Federal has provided
financing, from construction to
permanent, for two blocks of new
homes next to the Volga Golf Course.




lowa Savings Bank - currently located at
3624 Sixth Avenue - Des Moines, lowa

DES MOINES. IOWA

Average fand Value IOWO

Savings Bank

Iowa Savings Bank, Des Moines, Iowa,

Building Permits was acquire?i by First Midwest Financial, D I V I S I O N
Inc., on December 29, 1995, and now operates as a Division of First Federal
Savings Bank of the Midwest. Jeanne Partlo’w, who was President and CEO of
Iowa Savings Bank prior to the acquisition, now serves as President of this Division
and also as a director of First Midwest Financial, Inc.

Iowa Savings Bank was one of the best capitalized financial institutions in the State
of Iowa. They succeeded by carving out a market niche and doing well what
Taxahle Retail Sales savings banks have traditionally done: making loans for single-family homes. Over
time, they established a very loyal base of customers. As a Division of First Federal,
Iowa Savings Bank gained the resources to expand their product line which now
includes checking accounts, consumer loans, and some additional types of savings
Unemployment Rate accounts and mortgage loans programs. The bank is currently evaluating other
financial products and services to determine which would best serve the needs of
customers, and help to grow their customer base.

Plans are being finalized to open an Iowa Savings Bank office in West Des Moines
at the corner of 35th Street and Westown Parkway, a location formerly occupied by
Norwest Bank. Occupancy is anticipated early next year, following remodeling and
redecorating. This new location will be a real asset to the Division’s efforts to
increase their customer base and to market new products and services not
previously offered by Iowa Savings Bank.

JOWA SAVINGS BANK
ADVISORY BOARD

JEANNE PARTLOW President, lowa Savings Bank, Des Moines, Iowa
ROBERT J. KIRKE Property Manager, Amerus Properties, Inc.
SCOTT STOUFFER Architect, StoufferSmith Architects PC

Future location - lowa Savings Bank -
3438 Westown Parkway - West Des Moines, lowa




lowa Savings Bank is pleased
to have provided financing
for the Urbandale, lowa home
of Joseph and Kathleen
Fizgerald and their family.

Savings plans and consumer loans at lowa Savings
Bank assist customers in achieving their goals.
Leona Ross, Pella, lowa, enjoys her new car.

Howard and Ardella
Goetz, Des Moines, lowa,
have been long-time
savings customers at
lowa Savings Bank.




STUART QWA

Average i and Value

Building Permits

Taxable Retail Sales

Unemployment Rate

Security

Security State Bank - Main Office at
615 South Division Streetin Stuart, lowa.

State Bank

Security State Bank, Stuart, lowa was acquired by First Midwest Financial, Inc. on
September 30, 1996, and now operates as a separate subsidiary of First Midwest.
The Stuart office is a new 4200 sq. ft. building located in a growing commercial
area. Branch offices in Casey and Menlo were established over 40 years ago.

As a commercial bank, chartered by the State of Iowa, Security State Bank’s
predominant area of service is agriculture or ag-related business. Commercial,
consumer and real estate business have been increasing as a percentage of total
business. Continued growth in these areas is anticipated as the bank is focusing on
increasing market share in their primary trade area.

Security State Bank serves most of its agricultural borrowers with variable rate,
revolving lines of credit. This loan product has been well received, due to the added
convenience it offers for seasonal borrowing, which is typical in farming or ag-
related businesses.

Security State Bank offers a full line of commercial bank deposit products including
service charge free checking accounts, savings accounts, “money market” savings
accounts, and certificates of deposit. The bank’s commitment to friendly, personal
service is often cited as a primary source of customer satisfaction and as an
important key to attracting new customers.

DIRECTORS OF
SECURITY STATE BANK

JAMES S. HAAHR Chairman of the Board, President & CEO for
First Midwest Financial, Inc., and First Federal Savings
Bank of the Midwest

JeEFFREY N. Bump Partner, Bump and Bump Law Offices
Stuart and Panora, Iowa

E. WaYNE COOLEY Executive Secretary, Iowa Girls’ High School Athletic
Union, Des Moines, Iowa

E. THURMAN GASKILL Owner, Grain Farming Operation, Corwith, lowa

J- TYLER HaAHR Partner in the law firm of Lewis and Roca L.L.P.,
Phoenix, Arizona

CLAUDE E. Havick President, Security State Bank, Stuart, Iowa

RODNEY G. MULLENBURG  Dairy Specialist, Sioux City Division Purina Mills, Inc.,
Storm Lake, Iowa




Brothers Charles Shafer and William Shafer - Owners - Agri Drain Corp. near Adair, lowa. Agri Drain’s business
includes the manufacturing of drain tile inlet screens. The company operates out of a new 40,500 square-foot building
with 50 full time employees and sells their product in all 50 states, Canada, Mexico and Australia. Security State Bank

provides both short term and long term financing as part of the banking services available to commercial customers.

Security State Bank is pleased to

Michaelle Peterson of Casey, - provide ag financing to father and
lowa, enjoys her new car, son, Gary and Vance Cunningham,
purchased with a consumer loan for their 1,600 acre grain farming
through Security State Bank . operation near Menlo, lowa.




First Federal
Savings Bank

OF THE MIDWEST

Office Locations
STORM LAKE Laurens BROOKINGS FEDERAL DIVISION
Main Bank Office 104 North Third Street 600 Main Avenue
Fifth at Erie, P.O. Box 1307 Laurens, lowa 50554 Brookings, South Dakota
Storm Lake, Iowa 50588 712-845-2588 57006
712-732-4117 Manson 605-692-2314
800-792-6815 Eleventh at Main 800-842-7452
Storm Lake Plaza Manson, lowa 50563 Eastbrook Branch
1415 North Lake Avenue 712-469-3319 425 22nd Avenue South
Storm Lake, lowa 50588 Odebolt Brookings, South Dakota
712-732-6655 219 South Main Street 57006
Lake View Odebolt, Iowa 51458 605-692-2314
Fifth at Main 712-668-4881 IOWA SAVINGS BANK DIVISION
Lake View, Iowa 51450 Sac City 3624 Sixth Avenue
712-657-2721 518 Audubon Street Des Moines, Iowa 50313

Sac City, Iowa 50583 515-288-4865

712-662-7195

Securit
SToTye Bank

Office Locations

Main Office

615 South Division, P.O. Box A
Stuart, Iowa 50250
515-523-2203 800-523-8003

Casey

101 East Logan, P.O. Box 97
Casey, lowa 50048
515-746-3366 800-746-3367

Menlo

501 Sherman, P.O. Box 36
Menlo, Iowa 50164
515-524-4521






Selected Consolidated Financial Information

September 30, 19% 1995 1994 1993 1992
(In Thousands)
Selected Financial Condition Data:
Total aSSELS ...-eccieecieercsr st s $388,008 $264,213 $274,115  $160,827  $171,030
Loans receivable, D€t ........cooueemiimncnnneciivecicnvnes 243,534 178,552 155,497 80,224 74,561
Securities available for sale ........cccooorrerccnrniiinnceca, 109,492 70,232 37,180 20 20
Securities held t0 MAtULILY ....ccocvervecennimiercn e scse s — — 65917 56,085 87,401
Excess of cost over net assets acquired, net ................ 5,091 1,690 1,815 —_ —
DEpOSILS......ccocerierreecrninacns SO 233,406 171,793 176,167 122,813 147,289
Total borroWings........cceevvererveercerccnscns 106,478 52,248 61,218 3,115 7,554
Shareholders’ equity 43,210 38,013 34,683 33,438 14,970
Year Ended September 30, 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Selected Operations Data:
Total INtErest NCOME ....c.o.eereeereeerererseimesreeseeesneesense $ 24,337 $ 21,054 $ 15,153 $ 11,586 $ 13,791
Total interest expense 13,978 11,649 7,283 6,509 9,182
Net Interest INCOME. ... ereciaeremrrreemresaeesmsssresesenessens 10,359 9,405 7,870 5,077 4,609
Provision for loan losses........cccoucvieneecirececccccnane. 100 250 105 225 50
Net interest income after provision for loan losses .... 10,259 9,155 7,765 4,852 4,559
Total NONINterest INCOME......ccveverieemieenrrreeesieseasmsrens 1,419 2,286 1,078 1,555 1,047
Total NONINtErest EXPENSE —...vevrmrereseemsrenreereracessansains 7.568 5.576 4938 3.725 3,995
Income before income taxes, extraordinary
iterns and cumulative effect of changes in
T T —— 4,110 5,865 3,905 2,682 1,611
INCOME 1aX EXPENSE ...oocoomerircemrccrrn s st ebsesnnacane 1,696 2,321 1,433 1,045 591
Extraordinary items — net of taxes........ceeeeeereereeene — — — (285) _
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles — — 257 — —
INEE INCOIMIE eteeetetctenteceeecesetan et eestetemsseeseesonesssssneemeens $ 2414 $ 3544 § 2729 § 1,352 $ 1,020
Earnings per share (fully diluted):
Income before extraordinary items and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting
PEINCIPLES ...evetrereer et $ 134 $ 199 $ 124 §$ 080 —
NEE INCOME <....ceeerrcaemceriresseasseeesssssmsrnaesssssemsenas $ 134 §$ 199 § 137 $ 0.6 —
Year Ended September 30, 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
PERFORMANCE RATIOS:
Retum on assets (ratio of net income
to average total assets)? .........oovcerecercrncenrienns 0.76% 1.31% 1.29% 0.84% 0.57%
Return on stockholders’ equity (ratio of net ’
incomne to average equity)) __......ccoicerenenieesiennnnas 6.18 9.86 7.89 7.10 7.08
Interest rate spread information:
Average during year ................ ettt 2.88 313 325 2.69 225
End of year ... 2.84 2.85 2.96 2.88 2.55
Net yield on average interest-eaming assets ......... 347 3.63 3.94 321 263
Ratio of operating expense to average total assets 2.40 2.06 230 231 222
QUALITY RATIOS:
Non-performing assets to total assets at end of year .70 29 34 .78 23
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans 89.04 227.21 148.51 - 65.42 239.04
CAPITAL RATIOS:
Shareholders’ equity to total assets at end of period 11.14 14.39 12.65 20.79 8.75
Average shareholders’ equity to average assets ... 12.45 13.28 20.52 11.83 8.00
Ratio of average interest-earning assets to
average interest-bearing liabilities .................... 112.58% 111.35% 119.04% 112.69% 107.18%
OTHER DATA:
Book value per common share outstanding .......... $ 2221 $ 2119 § 1869 § 16.82 —
Dividends declared per share ......cccocecrmrerccrnnnncne . 0.44 0.30 — — —
Dividend payout ratio .......c.ceccveeicecreecrnsmsesncaes 30.90% 14.53% — — —
Number of full-service offices.........couuericeesreerenrens 11 9 9 7 10

(1) Return on assets and return on equity for fiscal year 1994 is 1.17% and 7.54%, respectively, excluding the cumulative effects of changes

in dccounting principles.



Management's Discussion and Andlysis

General

First Midwest Financial, Inc. (the “Company” or
“First Midwest”) is a bank holding company
whose primary assets are First Federal Savings
Bank of the Midwest (“First Federal”) and Security
State Bank (“Security”). The Company was
incorporated in 1993 as a unitary non-diversified
savings and loan holding company and, on
September 20, 1993, acquired all of the capital stock
of First Federal in connection with First Federal’s
conversion from mutual to stock form of owner-
ship. On September 30, 1996, the Company
became a bank holding company in conjunction
with the acquisition of Security. All references to the
Company prior to September 20, 1993, except
where otherwise indicated, are to First Federal and
its subsidiary on a consolidated basis.

The Company focuses on establishing and
maintaining long-term relationships with customers,
and is committed to serving the financial services
needs of the communities in its market area. The
Company’s primary market area includes the
counties of Adair, Buena Vista, Calhoun, Ida,
Guthrie, Pocahontas, Polk and Sac located in Iowa,
and Brookings County located in east central
South Dakota. The Company attracts retail
deposits from the general public and uses those
deposits, together with other borrowed funds,
to originate and purchase residential and com-
mercial mortgage loans, and to provide financing for
consumer, agricultural and other commercial
business purposes.

The Company’s basic mission is to maintain and
enhance core earnings while serving its primary

market area. As such, the Board of Directors has
adopted a business strategy designed to (i) maintain
the Company’s tangible capital in excess of
regulatory requirements, (ii) maintain the quality of
the Company’s assets, (iii) control operating
expenses, (iv) maintain and, as possible, increase the
Company’s interest rate spread and (v) manage the
Company’s exposure to changes in interest rates.

Acquisitions Completed

On September 30, 1996, First Midwest completed
the acquisition of Central West Bancorporation
(“Central West”), and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Security State Bank located in Stuart, Iowa.
Upon acquisition, Central West was merged into
First Midwest, and Security became a wholly-
owned stand-alone subsidiary of First Midwest.
Security operates offices in Stuart, Menlo and
Casey, Iowa. At the date of acquisition, Central
West had assets of approximately $33 million and
equity of $2.6 million. Central West shareholders
received cash of $18.04 and 2.3528 shares of the
common stock of First Midwest for each Central
West share held, totaling an aggregate considera-
tion of approximately $5.2 million. The acquisi-
tion was accounted for as a purchase, and the
accompanying consolidated financial statements
reflect the combined results since the date of
acquisition, the effect of which was not material.
The excess of cost over the estimated fair value of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, totaling
approximately $2.8 million, is being amortized over
a fifteen year period (see Notes 1 and 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

On December 29, 1995, First Midwest completed
the acquisition of Iowa Bancorp, Inc. (“lowa

The following table sets forth the weighted average effective interest rate on interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities at the end of each of the years presented.

At September 30, 1996 1995 1994

WEIGHTED AVERAGE YIELD ON:
L0aDS TECEIVADIE ....cveeceeme ettt e st er e s b eran st er st e 8.74% 8.58% 7.99%
Mortgage-backed securities 7.06 7.97 6.85
SECUNILIES....cvcrererereseserestsoensmnseraessr s sas et e e senns e ron 599 6.79 7.66
Other interest-earning assets 5.04 544 4.66
Combined weighted average yield on interest-earning assets..............ccvevvurerrersneens 7.87 8.13 7.46

WEIGHTED AVERAGE RATE PAID ON:
Demand, NOW deposits and Money Market ...........cremeureonmreeerecsersssrememreasesees 2.35 2.55 2.30
e o T O 3.22 3.00 2.28
Time deposits .....ccoevvcveenecrmreee 5.78 5.80 4.87
FHLB advances ...........coovcrvmeeneees 5.81 6.14 5.10
Other borrowed money 5.48 5.75 4.70
Combined weighted average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities ............co....... 5.03 528 4.50

] 1T T T O R 2.84% 285% 2.96%




Bancorp”), and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Iowa
Savings Bank, a federal savings bank, (“Iowa
Savings”) located in Des Moines, lowa. Upon
acquisition, lowa Bancorp was merged into the
Company and Iowa Savings was merged into First
Federal. The Iowa Savings office operates as the
Iowa Savings Bank Division of First Federal Savings
Bank of the Midwest. At the date of acquisition,
Iowa Bancorp had assets of approximately $25
million and equity of $7.2 million. The Company
purchased all of Iowa Bancorp’s 379,980 out-
standing shares and 36,537 shares subject to option
for a cash payment of $20.39 per share, less the
exercise price of shares subject to option, for a total
net purchase price of $8.0 million. The acquisition
was accounted for as a purchase, and the accom-
panying consolidated financial statements reflect
the combined results since the date of acquisition.
The excess of cost over the estimated fair value of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, total-
ing approximately $760,000, is being amortized
over a fifteen year period (see Notes 1 and 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

On March 28, 1994, the Company acquired
Community Financial Systems, Inc. (“Community”)
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Brookings

RateNolumé Analysis

Federal Bank, a federal savings bank, (“Brookings
Federal™) located in Brookings, South Dakota.
Upon acquisition, Community was merged into First
Midwest and Brookings Federal was merged into
First Federal. The Company paid a cash price of
$31.38 per share to acquire all of the 333,513 shares
of Community’s outstanding common stock, for a
total purchase price of approximately $10.5 million.
At the date of acquisition, Brookings Federal had
assets of approximately $69 million and deposits of
approximately $57 million. The two offices of
Brookings Federal operate as the Brookings Federal
Bank Division of First Federal Savings Bank of the
Midwest. The acquisition was accounted for as a
purchase and, accordingly, the accompanying con-
solidated financial statements reflect the combined
operating results since the date of acquisition. The
excess of cost over the estimated fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, totaling
approximately $1.8 million, is being amortized over
a fifteen year period (see Notes 1 and 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements).

Financial Condition ,
The following discussion of the Company’s
consolidated financial condition should be read in

The following table presents the dollar amount of changes in interest income and interest expense for major components of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. It distinguishes between the increase related to higher outstanding
balances and that due to the levels and volatility of interest rates. For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities, information is provided on changes attributable to (1) changes in volume (i.e., changes in volume
multiplied by old rate) and (ii) changes in rate (i.e., changes in rate multiplied by old volume). For purposes of this table,
changes attributable to both rate and volume, which cannot be segregated, bave been allocated proportionately to the

change due to volume and the change due to rate.

Year Ended September 30, 1996 vs. 1995 1995 vs_ 1994
Increase Increase Total Increase Increase Total
(Decrease) (Decrease) Increase (Decrease) (Decrease) Increase
Due to Volume  Due to Rate (Decrease) Due to Volume Due to Rate (Decrease)
(Dollars in Thousands)
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:
Loans receivable .........ouiveemniresirrecsesens $4170 § 629 $ 4,799 $4,180 $ (156) $4,024
Mortgage-backed securities.................... (1,251) (133)  (1,384) 609 130 739
SECUTIIES .ovevvreeererveeeienneernerersneemassmeescenas 500 (695) (195) 26 1,007 1,033
FHLB stock .......oocoeeereeeeeeeeceieeenas 66 (3) 63 106 (1) 105
Total interest-earning assets .........ccoceeercanens $ 3,485 $ (202) $ 3,283 $4,921 $ 980 $ 5,901
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES:
Demand and NOW deposits.........-........ $ 4 §$ (349 $ (79 $ 6 $ 7 $§
Savings deposits........cccerucemscrercrmeerenerens 121 4 125 64 5 69
Time deposits ..c.cveirsrrerccereareseresenes 953 518 1,471 1,414 660 2,074
FHLB advances ........cooceeeecuececeremaeroneceas 732 11 743 1,580 723 2,303
Other borrowed money .......cccccveeeueuencn. 60 6 66 (60) (19) (79)
Total interest-bearing liabilities ...........ccc.... $ 1,825 $ 505 $2,330 $ 3,004 $ 1,362 $ 4,366
Net effect on net interest income ................ $ 1,660 $ (707) $ 953 $1917 $ (382) $1,535




conjunction with the Selected Consolidated Financial
Information and Consolidated Financial Statements
and the related notes included elsewhere herein.

The Company’s total assets at September 30, 1996
were $388.0 million, an increase of $123.8 million,
or 46.9%, from $264.2 million at September 30,
1995. The increase in assets is due to completed
acquisitions during the period of Iowa Bancorp and
Central West, which had assets at the dates of
acquisition of approximately $25 million and $33
million, respectively. The increase in assets also
resulted from the purchase of mortgage-backed
securities and other investment securities, and from
the increased origination and purchase of loans
during the period.

The Company’s portfolio of securities available
for sale, excluding mortgage-backed securities,
increased $25.1 million, or 51.4%, to $73.9 million
at September 30, 1996 from $48.8 million at
September 30, 1995. The increase in securities avail-
able for sale, primarily short-term treasury and fed-
eral agency securities, is due to securities acquired in
acquisitions completed during the fiscal year and as
the result of securities purchased in amounts that

Average Balances, Interost Rates and Yields

exceeded maturities during the period.

The balance in mortgage-backed securities
available for sale increased by $14.2 million, or
66.3%, from $21.4 million at September 30, 1995,
to $35.6 million at September 30, 1996. The
increase resulted from the purchase of adjustable-
rate mortgage-backed securities that were funded by
adjustable-rate borrowings from the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Des Moines.

The Company’s net portfolio of loans receivable
increased by $65.0 million, or 36.4%, to $243.5
million at September 30, 1996 from $178.5 million
at September 30, 1995. The increase in net loans
receivable is due, in part, to the acquisitions of Iowa
Bancorp and Central West which, at the dates of
acquisition, had loans of approximately $16 million
and $20 million, respectively. The increase also
resulted from increased origination of residential and
commercial real estate loans, consumer loans and
ag-related loans. In addition, the loan portfolio
increased as a result of purchases of multi-family
residential and commercial real estate loans.

The balance of customer deposits increased by
$61.6 million, or 35.9%, from $171.8 million at

_ The following table presents for the periods indicated the total dollar amount of interest income from average interest-earning assets and

the resultant yields, as well as the interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities, expressed both in dollars and rates. No tax
equivalent adjustments bave been made. All average balances are quarterly average balances. Non-accruing loans have been included in

the table as loans carrying a zero yield.

Year Ended September 30, 1996 1995 1994
Average Interest Average Interest Average Interest
Ousstanding ~ Eamed/  Yield/ Outstanding ~ Famed/  Yield  Oursmanding Eamed/  Yield/
Balance Paid Rae Balance Paid Rate Balance Paid Rate
(Dollars in Thousands)
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS: ]
Loans receivable® .......................... $207,983 $ 18,567 8.93% $ 161,243 $13,768 8.54% $112,317 § 9,744 8.68%
Mortgage-backed securites............. 34,213 2,521 7.37 51,157 3,905 7.63 42,914 3,166 7.38
Securities 51,494 2,916 5.66 42,674 3,111 7.29 42,130 2,078 4.93
FHLB stock 4,644 333 7.17 3,720 270 7.26 2,262 165 7.29
Total interest-earning assets ................ $298,334 $24,337 8.16% $258,794 $21,054 8.14% $199,623 $15,153 7.59%
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES:
Demand and NOW deposits........... $ 29,377 § 661 225% $ 31,139 $§ 736 236% $ 30,861 $ 737 2.39%
Savings deposits ......cocervervrecercenrnene 14,906 402 2.70 10,431 277 2.66 7,933 208 2.62
Time deposits......c..cceensrerseceercrmrenas 149,247 8,703 5.83 132,856 7,232 5.44 104,283 5,158 495
FHLB advances ........cccoceereeeeennens 69,265 4,087 5.90 56,820 3,344 5.88 22,579 1,041 4.61
Other borrowed money.................. 2,198 126 5.73 1,159 60 5.18 2.043 139 6.80
Total interest-bearing liabilities .......... $264,993 $13,979 5.28% $232,405 $11,649 5.01% $167,699 § 7,283 4.34%
Average interest-earning assets ........,... $ 33341 $ 26,389 $ 31,924
Net interest iNCOME. .....cc.cerererererrernacss $10,358 $ 9.405 $ 7.870
Net interest rate spread.........ocoueeeenene- 2.88% 3.13% 3.25%
Net yield on average interest-
CAITINEG ASSELS ..evvereacsenraescreemserens 3.47% 3.63% 3.94%
Average interest-earning assets to
average interest-bearing liabilities .. 112 58% 111.35% 119.04%

@ Calculated net of deferred loan fees, loan discounts, loans in process and loss reserves.



September 30, 1995 to $233.4 million at September
30, 1996. The increase in deposits resulted partly
from the acquisitions of Iowa Bancorp and Central
West which, at the dates of acquisition, had
deposits of approximately $15 million and $28
million, respectively. In addition, customer deposits
increased as a result of management’s continued
efforts to monitor and enhance deposit product
design and marketing programs.

The Company’s borrowings from the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Des Moines increased by $51.2
million, from $51.1 million at September 30, 1995
to $102.3 million at September 30, 1996. The
increased borrowings were used primarily in the
purchase of securities, including mortgage-backed
securities, and to fund growth of the Company’s
loan portfoho

Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s results
of operations should be read in conjunction with the
Selected Consolidated Financial Information and
Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes included elsewhere herein.

The Company’s results of operations are pri-

marily dependent on net interest income, noninterest
income and the Company’s ability to manage
operating expenses. Net interest income is the
difference between the interest earned on interest-
earning assets and the interest expense paid on
interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income is
affected by regulatory, economic and competitive
factors that influence interest rates, loan demand
and deposit flows. The Company, like other
financial institutions, is subject to interest rate risk to
the extent that its interest-earning assets mature or
reprice at different times, or on a different basis,
than its interest-bearing liabilities.

The Company’s noninterest income consists
primarily of fees charged on transaction accounts
and for the origination of loans, both of which help
to offset the costs associated with establishing and
maintaining these deposit and loan accounts. In
addition, noninterest income is derived from the
activities of First Federal’s wholly-owned sub-
sidiaries, First Services Financial Limited, and
Brookings Service Corporation, which engage in the
sale of various non-insured investment products.
Historically, the Company has not derived
significant income as a result of gains on the sale of
securities and other assets. However, during the year
ended September 30, 1995, a $1.1 million gain was
recorded as a result of the sale of mortgage-backed
securities.

On September 30, 1996, federal legislation was
signed into law requiring that all thrift institutions
pay a one-time assessment to restore the Savings

Association Insurance Fund (SAIF) to its statutory
reserve level of at least 1.25% of insured depositor
accounts. The assessment is 0.657% of First
Federal’s insured deposits as of March 31, 1995,
including those held by Iowa Savings at that date.
As a result of the special assessment, the Company
recognized a pre-tax charge of $1.27 million, or
$795,000 net of related income taxes, as of the
September 30, 1996 effective date of the legislation.
Beginning January 1, 1997, the legislation provides
that First Federal’s annual deposit insurance
premium (including required payments on the
Financing Corporation obligation) will be reduced
from 0.23% to an estimated 0.064% of insured
deposits.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended
September 30, 1996 and September 30, 1995

General Net income for the year ended September
30, 1996 decreased $1.13 million, or 31.9%, to
$2.41 million, from $3.54 million for the same
period ended September 30, 1995. The decrease in
net income reflects the one-time special assessment
to recapitalize the SAIF, which totaled $795,000, net
of income taxes. In addition, the decrease in net
income resulted from the previous year recognition
of gains on the sale of securities resulting primarily
from the restructure of the Company’s mortgage-
backed securities portfolio, which increased fiscal
year 1995 income by $720,000, net of income taxes.

Net Interest Income The Company’s net interest
income for the year ended September 30, 1996
increased by $954,000, or 10.1%, to $10.36 million
compared to $9.40 million for the same period
ended September 30, 1995. The increase in net
interest income reflects an overall increase in average
net interest-earning assets during the period resulting
from the acquisition of Iowa Bancorp during the
first fiscal quarter, and internal increases in the
portfolio of loans and securities. The net yield on
average interest-earning assets declined to 3.47% for
the period ended September 30, 1996 from 3.63%
for the same period in 1995. The reduction in net
yield is due primarily to the increased cost of retail
time deposits resulting from aggressive competition
for such deposits during the period.

During the fiscal years ended September 30, 1996
and 1995, the Company increased its origina-
tion and purchase of multi-family and commercial
real estate loans and, in addition, increased its
origination of consumer and agricultural business
loans.  The Company anticipates activity in this type
of lending to continue in future years, subject to
market demand. Net interest income is expected to
trend upward as a result of this lending activity as
interest rate yields are generally higher on this type



of loan product compared to yields provided by
conventional single-family residential real estate
loans. This lending activity is considered to carry a
higher level of risk due to the nature of the collateral
and the size of individual loans. As such, the
Company anticipates continued increases in its
allowance for loan losses.

Interest Income Interest income for the year ended
September 30, 1996 increased $3.28 million, or
15.6%, to $24.34 million from $21.05 million for
the same period in 1995. The increase was primarily
due to a $4.80 million increase in interest earned on
the loan portfolio, to $18.57 million for the year
ended September 30, 1996, from $13.77 million in
1995. The increase in loan interest income resulted
from higher average loan portfolio balances due to
internal growth of the loan portfolio and the
acquisition of Jowa Bancorp and, to a lesser extent,
to a higher average yield on the loan portfolio
during the period. Interest income from mortgage-
backed securities declined $1.38 million for the year
ended September 30, 1996 to $2.52 million from
$3.90 million in 1995 due primarily to the reduction
in the average portfolio balance during the period.

Interest Expense Interest expense increased $2.33
million, or 20.0%, to $13.98 million for the period
ended September 30, 1996 from $11.65 million for
the same period in 1995. The increase in interest
expense was due to an increase in the average
outstanding balance of time deposits and FHLB
advances during the year ended September 30, 1996,
compared to the samie period in 1995. The increase
in the average balance of time deposits resulted from
internal growth of the deposit portfolio and the
acquisition of Iowa Bancorp. The average
outstanding balance of FHLB advances increased
due to borrowing activity throughout the period
used primarily to fund growth of the loan portfolio
and the purchase of securities. To a lesser extent, the
increase in interest expense reflects higher interest
rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities during the
year ended September 30, 1996, compared to the
previous year.

Provision for Loan Losses The provision for loan
losses for the year ended September 30, 1996 was
$100,000 compared to $250,000 for the same
period in 1995. The comparatively higher provision
for loan losses during the previous year resulted
from management’s election to increase the balance
in the allowance for loan losses in conjunction with
growth of the loan portfolio during that period.

Management believes, based on review of historic
loan losses, current economic conditions, and other
factors, that the current level of provision for loan
losses, and the resulting level of the allowance for
loan losses, reflects an adequate reserve against
potential losses from the loan portfolio. In addi-
tion, because of the Company’s extremely low loan
loss experience during its history, management also
considers the loan loss experience of similar port-
folios in comparable lending markets. Accordingly,
the calculation of the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses is not based solely on the level of non-
performing assets.

Management will continue to monitor the
allowance for loan losses and make future additions
to the allowance through the provision for loan
losses as economic conditions and loan portfolio
quality dictate. Although the Company maintains
its allowance for loan losses at a level which it con-
siders to be adequate to provide for losses, there can
be no assurance that future losses will not exceed
estimated amounts or that additional provisions for
loan losses will not be required in future periods.. In
addition, the determination as to the amount of its
allowance for loan losses is subject to review by the
Company’s regulators, as part of their examination
process, which may result in the establishment of an
additional allowance based upon their judgment of
the information available to them at the time of their
examination.

Noninterest Income Noninterest income for the
year ended September 30, 1996 decreased $867,000,
or 37.9%, to $1.42 million from $2.29 million for
the same period in 1995. Noninterest income for
the previous fiscal year included gains on the sale of
securities of $1.07 million, compared to $79,000 for
year ended September 30, 1996. Noninterest
income from loan fees and service charges increased
by $118,000 for fiscal 1996 compared to the same
period in 1995 as a result of increased lending
activity and increased activity on transaction
accounts subject to service charges.

Noninterest Expense Noninterest expense increased
by $1.99 million, or 35.7%, to $7.57 million for the
year ended September 30, 1996 compared to $5.58
million for the same period in 1995. The increase
primarily reflects the one-time special assessment of
$1.27 million, pre-tax, for the recapitalization of
SAIE In addition, noninterest expense increased as a
result of additional operating expenses associated
with the acquisition of lowa Bancorp during the first
quarter of fiscal 1996.




Income Tax Income tax expense decreased
by $624,000, or 26.9%, to $1.70 million for the
year ended September 30, 1996 from $2.32 million
for the same period in 1995. The decrease in income
tax expense reflects the reduction in the level of
taxable income for the period ended September 30,
1996 compared t6 the same period in 1995.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended
September 30, 1995 and September 30, 1994

General Net income for the year ended September
30, 1995 increased $815,000, or 29.9%, to $3.5
million, from $2.7 million for the same period ended
September 30, 1994. The increase in net income
reflects higher net interest income as a result of a full
year of operations after the acquisition of Brookings
Federal. In addition, net income was enhanced by a
gain on the sale of securities resulting from the
restructure of the Company’s portfolio of mortgage-
backed securities. Net income for the year ended
September 30, 1995 was negatively impacted
compared to the previous year by an increase of
$145,000 in the provision for loan losses, and by an
overall increase of $638,000 in other expenses,
primarily as a result of the full year operation of the
Brookings Federal division. Operating results for
the year ended September 30, 1994 include the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle
resulting from the implementation of SFAS 109
(Accounting for Income Taxes), which increased net
income by $257,000.

Net Interest Income The Company’s net interest
income for the year ended September 30, 1995
increased by $1.5 million, or 19.5%, to $9.4 million
compared to $7.9 million for the same period ended
September 30, 1994, The increase in net interest
income reflects an overall increase in average
interest-earning assets during the period resulting
primarily from the full-year effect of the acquisition
of Brookings Federal. The net yield on average
interest-earning assets declined to 3.63% for the
period ended September 30, 1995 from 3.94% for
the same period ended in 1994. The reduction in net
yield was due to an overall reduction in average net
interest-earning assets and to a reduction in the net
interest rate spread.

Interest Income Interest income for the year ended
September 30, 1995 increased $5.9 million, or
38.9%, to $21.1 million from $15.2 million for the
same period in 1994. The increase was attributable
to a $4.0 million increase in interest earned on the
loan portfolio to $13.8 million for the year ended
September 30, 1995 from $9.7 million the previous
year. This increase in loan interest income resulted

from a significantly higher average portfolio balance
of loans receivable during the period due to internal
growth of the loan portfolio and to the full-year
effect of the acquisition of Brookings Federal.
Interest income on mortgage-backed securities was
enhanced by $739,000 compared to the previous
year primarily as a result of the increase in the
average portfolio balance. In addition, interest
income from the Company’s portfolio of securities
held to maturity and securities available for sale
increased by $1.0 million for the year ended
September 30, 1995 compared to 1994 due to
higher yields received on the portfolio.

Interest Expense Interest expense increased $4.4
million, or 60.0%, to $11.7 million for the period
ended September 30, 1995 from $7.3 million for the
same period in 1994. The increase in interest
expense was due primarily to a significant increase
in the average outstanding balance of time deposits
and FHLB advances during the year ended
September 30, 1995, compared to the same period
in 1994. The increase in the average balance of time
deposits resulted from the full-year effect of the
Brookings Federal acquisition. The average
outstanding balance of FHLB advances increased
due to borrowing activity throughout the period
used to fund growth of the loan portfolio. To a
lesser extent, the increase in interest expense reflects
higher interest rates paid on interest-bearing
liabilities during the year ended September 30, 1995,
compared to the previous year.

Provision for Loan Losses The provision for loan
losses for the year ended September 30, 1995 was
$250,000 compared to $105,000 for the same
period in 1994. The $145,000 increase in the
provision, and a resulting increase in the allowance
for loan losses, reflects the increase in the level of
agricultural related, multi-family, and commercial
real estate lending activity. These types of lending
activities are considered to carry a higher degree of
risk than single-family residential loans due to the
nature of the collateral securing such loans, and the
generally larger average size of individual loans. The
ratio of non-performing assets to total assets
declined to .29% at September 30, 1995, compared
to .35% at the end of 1994.

Noninterest Income Noninterest income for the
year ended September 30, 1995 increased $1.2
million, or 112.1%, to $2.3 million from $1.1
million for the same period in 1994. The increase in
noninterest income during the period ended
September 30, 1995 was primarily due to a $1.1
million gain on the sale of securities resulting from




the restructure of the Company’s portfolio of
mortgage-backed securities. In addition, during the
year ended September 30, 1995, noninterest income
from loan fees and service charges increased by
$114,000 compared to the same period in 1994.

Noninterest Noninterest expense increased
by $638,000, or 12.9%, to $5.6 million for the year
ended September 30, 1995 compared to $4.9 million
for the same period in 1994. The increase primarily
reflects the full-year effect of additional operating
expenses associated with the acquisition of
Brookings Federal. In addition, noninterest expense
includes an increase of $54,000 in federal deposit
insurance premiums due to the higher average
outstanding balance of insured deposit accounts
during the period.

Income Tax Expense Income tax expense increased
by $887,000, or 61.9%, to $2.3 million for the year
ended September 30, 1995 from $1.4 million for the
same period in 1994. The increase in income tax
expense reflects increased income before income
taxes for the period ended September 30, 1995
compared to the same period in 1994,

Effect of Accounting Change For the year ended
September 30, 1994, net income was increased by
$257,000 due to the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle resulting from the
implementation of SFAS 109 (Accounting for
Income Taxes). There was no such effect on net
income during the year ended 1995.

Asset/Liability Management

The Company currently focuses lending efforts
toward originating and purchasing competitively
priced adjustable-rate loan products and fixed-rate
loan products with relatively short terms to maturity,
generally 15 years or less. This strategy allows the
Company to maintain a portfolio of loans which
will be relatively sensitive to changes in the level of
interest rates while providing a reasonable spread to
the cost of liabilities used to fund the loans.

The Company’s primary objective for its invest-
ment portfolio is to provide the liquidity necessary to
meet loan funding needs. This portfolio is used in
the ongoing management of changes to the
Company’s asset/liability mix, while contributing to
profitability through earnings flow. The invest-
ment policy generally calls for funds to be invested
among various categories of security types and
maturities based upon the Company’s need for
liquidity, desire to achieve a proper balance between
minimizing risk while maximizing yield, the need to
provide collateral for borrowings, and to fulfill the
Company’s asset/liability management goals.

During the quarter ended June 30, 1995, all
securities previously designated as held to maturity,
including mortgage-backed securities, were
reclassified to the available for sale category. The
reclassification was performed after consideration by
management of a pending regulatory policy
clarification regarding the measurement of interest
sensitivity of adjustable-rate mortgage-backed

securities. It was management’s opinion that the

pending regulatory policy clarification provided
sufficient potential risk to the market value of this
type of security to warrant reclassification of the
securities held by the Company to the available-for-
sale designation. In accordance with the require-
ments of SFAS 115 (see Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements), all other securities previously
designated as held to maturity were also reclassified
to available for sale. During the quarter ended June
30, 1995, the reclassified adjustable-rate mortgage-
backed securities were sold.

The Company’s cost of funds responds to changes
in interest rates due to the relatively short-term
nature of its deposit portfolio. Consequently, the
results of operations are influenced by the levels of
short-term interest rates. The Company offers a
range of maturities on its deposit products at
competitive rates and monitors the maturities on an
ongoing basis.

The Company emphasizes and promotes its
savings, money market, demand and NOW accounts
and, subject to market conditions, certificates of
deposit with maturities of six months through five
years, principally from its primary market area. The
savings and NOW accounts tend to be less
susceptible to rapid changes in interest rates.

In managing its asset/liability mix, the Company,
at times, depending on the relationship between
long- and short-term interest rates, market
conditions and consumer preference, may place
somewhat greater emphasis on maximizing its
net interest margin than on strictly matching the
interest rate sensitivity of its assets and liabilities.
Management believes that the increased net income
which may result from an acceptable mismatch in
the actual maturity or repricing of its asset and
liability portfolios can, during periods of declining or
stable interest rates, provide sufficient returns to
justify the increased exposure to sudden and
unexpected increases in interest rates which may
result from such a mismatch. The Company has
established limits, which may change from time to
time, on the level of acceptable interest rate risk.
There can be no assurance, however, that in the
event of an adverse change in interest rates the
Company’s efforts to limit interest rate risk will be
successful.



Net Portfolio Value The Office of Thrift Supervision
(“OTS”) provides a Net Portfolio Value (“NPV”)
approach to the quantification of interest rate risk
for thrift institutions such as First Federal. This
approach calculates the difference between the
present value of expected cash flows from assets and
the present value of expected cash flows from
liabilities, as well as cash flows from off-balance
sheet contracts. Management of First Federal’s
assets and liabilities is performed within the context
of the marketplace, but also within limits estab-
lished by the Board of Directors on the amount of
change in NPV which is acceptable given certain
interest rate changes.

The OTS issued a regulation which uses a net
market value methodology to measure the interest
rate risk exposure of thrift institutions. Under OTS
regulations, an institution’s “normal” level of
interest rate risk in the event of an assumed 200
basis point change in interest rates is a decrease in
the institution’s NPV in an amount not to exceed
two percent of the present value of its assets. Thrift
institutions with greater than “normal” interest rate
risk exposure must take a deduction from their total
capital available to meet their risk-based capital
requirement. The amount of that deduction is one-
half of the difference between (a) the institution’s
actual calculated exposure to a 200 basis point
interest rate increase or decrease (whichever results
in the greater pro forma decrease in NPV) and (b} its
“normal” level of exposure which is 2.00% of the
present value of its assets. The regulation, however,

At September 30, 1996

will not become effective until the OTS evaluates the
process by which thrift institutions may appeal an
interest rate risk deduction determination. It is
uncertain as to when this evaluation may be com-
pleted. Had such regulation been in effect at
September 30, 1996, First Federal’s interest rate risk
would have been considered normal and no addi-
tional risk-based capital would have been required.

Presented below, as of September 30, 1996, is an
analysis of First Federal’s interest rate risk as
measured by changes in NPV for an instantaneous
and sustained parallel shift in the yield curve, in 100
basis point increments, up and down 400 basis
points, in accordance with OTS regulations. As
illustrated in the table, First Federal’s NPV is more
sensitive to rising rate changes than declining rates.
This occurs primarily because, as rates rise, the
market value of fixed-rate loans declines due to both
the rate increase and slowing prepayments. When
rates decline, First Federal does not experience a
significant rise in market value for these loans
because borrowers prepay at relatively higher rates.
The value of First Federal’s deposits and borrowings
change in approximately the same proportion in
rising and falling rate scenarios.

Management reviews the OTS measurements and
related peer reports on a quarterly basis. In addition
to monitoring selected measures of NPV, manage-
ment also monitors effects on net interest income
resulting from increases or decreases in interest rates.
This measure is used in conjunction with NPV
measures to identify excessive interest rate risk.

Change in Interest Rate Board Limit
(Basis Points) % Change $ Change % Change
(Dollars in Thousands)

+400 bp (60)% $(13,549) (36)%

+300 bp (50) . (9,977) (26)

+200 bp (40) (6,499) (17)

+100 bp (25) (3,153) (8)
0 bp - - -

-100 bp (10) 2,447 6

-200 bp (15) 4,131 11

- 300 bp (20) 5,885 16

- 400 bp (25) 8,068 21

- Interest Sensitivity GAP Analysis Management of

interest sensitivity of Security State Bank is accom-
plished by matching the maturities of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The

following table illustrates the asset/(liability) funding
gaps for selected maturity periods as of September
30, 1996 for Security State Bank.




At Septomber 30, 1996

Repricable or Maturing Within
0-6 6-12 Total ‘ Over
Months Months 1 Year | 1Year Total
(In Thousands)

ASSETS
Interest-earning deposits in

other financial institutions ..........-cceeeeeerecen $ 100 $ 0 $ 100 $ 0 $ 100
Federal funds sold ....coocoooeoeee e 0 0 0 0 0
SECUNLIES ..ecteecruierersemrieeriveeinesesesenrratesesmneanes 2,516 2,250 4,766 5,150 9,916
| G 1 3 9,437 2,570 12,007 8,968 20,975

Total interest-earning assets ......cceweveeeressens $12,053 $ 4,820 $16,873 $14,118 $30,991
LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing deposits ....-oeecercerivesreecrasrarains $ 8,761 $12265 $21,026 $ 3,910 $24 936
Borrowed funds .........ccocoeciioerereeee e 1,400 0 1,400 0 1,400

Total interest-bearing liabilities...................... $10,161 $12,265 $22.426 $ 3,910 $26,336
Asset/(Liability) funding GAP ........cccvrveeenenene. $ 1,892 $(7,445) $(5,553) $10,208 $ 4,655
GAP ratio (assets/liabilities) ........ccocieeecvivrieirennns 119% 39% 75% 361% 118%

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method
of analysis presented in the foregoing tables. For
example, although certain assets and liabilities may
have similar maturities or periods to repricing,
they may react in different degrees to changes in
market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on
certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in
advance of changes in market interest rates, while
interest rates on other types may lag behind changes
in market rates. Additionally, certain assets such as
adjustable-rate mortgage loans, have features which
restrict changes in interest rates on a short-term basis
and over the life of the asset. Further, in the event of
a change in interest rates, prepayments and early
withdrawal levels would likely deviate from those
assumed in calculating the tables. Finally, the ability
of some borrowers to service their debt may decrease
in the event of an interest rate increase. First Federal
considers all of these factors in monitoring its
exposure to interest rate risk.

Asset Quality It is management’s belief, based on
information available, that the Company’s historical
level of asset quality has been satisfactory and that
asset quality will continue to remain strong. At
September 30, 1996, non-performing assets,
consisting of non-accruing loans, real estate owned
and repossessed consumer property, totaled
$2,733,000, or 0.70% of total assets, compared to
$759,000, or 0.29% of total assets, for the fiscal
year ended 1995. The increase in non-performing
assets was due primarily to the addition of a
$1,623,000 real estate participation loan secured by
a 104 unit multi-family apartment complex located
in Madison, Wisconsin.

Liquidity and Sources of Funds The Company’s
primary sources of funds are deposits, borrowings,
principal and interest payments on loans and
mortgage-backed securities, and maturing invest-
ment securities. While scheduled loan repayments
and maturing investments are relatively predictable,
deposit flows and early loan repayments are
influenced by the level of interest rates, general
economic conditions and competition.

Federal regulations require First Federal to
maintain minimum levels of liquid assets. Currently,
First Federal is required to maintain liquid assets of
at least 5% of the average daily balance of net
withdrawable savings deposits and borrowings
payable on demand in one year or less during the
preceding calendar month, of which short-term
liquid assets must comprise not less than 1%.
Liquid assets for purposes of this ratio include cash,
certain time deposits, U.S. Government, govern-
mental agency and corporate securities and
obligations generally having remaining terms to
maturity of less than five years, unless otherwise
pledged. First Federal has historically maintained its
liquidity ratio at levels well in excess of those
required. First Federal’s regulatory liquidity ratios
were §.4%, 12.2% and 8.0% at September 30,
1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-
term function of the Company’s management
strategy. The Company adjusts its investments in
liquid assets based upon management’s assessment
of (i) expected loan demand in the Company’s
market area, (ii) the projected availability of pur-
chased loan products, (iii) expected deposit flows,
(iv) yields available on interest-bearing deposits, and




(v) the objectives of its asset/liability management
program. Excess liquidity is generally invested
in interest-earning overnight deposits and other
short-term government agency obligations. If the
Company requires funds beyond its ability
to generate them internally, it has additional borrow-
ing capacity with the Federal Home Loan Bank
of Des Moines and has collateral eligible for use
with reverse repurchase agreements.

The primary investing activities of the Company
are the origination and purchase of loans and the
purchase of securities. During the years ended
September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994, the Company
originated loans of $95.8 million, $65.3 million and
$50.3 million, respectively. Purchases of loans
totaled $24.9 million, $19.2 million and $22.1
million during the years ended September 30, 1996,
1995 and 1994, respectively. During the years
ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994, the
Company purchased mortgage-backed securities and
other securities in the amount of $121.0 million,
$43.5 million and $76.4 million, respectively.

At September 30, 1996, the Company had out-
standing commitments to originate and purchase
loans of $20.7 million. Certificates of deposit
scheduled to mature in one year or less from
September 30, 1996 total $126.5 million. Based on
its historical experience, management believes
that a significant portion of such deposits will
remain with the Company, however, there can be no
assurance that the Company can retain all such
deposits. Management believes, however, that loan
repayment and other sources of funds will be
adequate to meet the Company’s foreseeable short-
and long-term liquidity needs.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 1996,
the Company completed a major remodeling of its
main office building at an approximate cost of
$911,000. In addition, the Company initiated
negotiations for the purchase of an existing building
located in Des Moines, Iowa, for the purpose of
establishing a branch office of First Federal. The
building purchase, and related remodeling,
1s anticipated to be completed during the first
quarter of the 1997 fiscal year. During the fiscal
year ended September 30, 1995, the Company
completed an upgrade of its data processing system
at an approximate cost of $300,000. The source of
funds for capital improvements of this type is from
the normal operations of the Company.

On September 20, 1993, the Bank converted from
a federally chartered mutual savings and loan asso-
ciation to a federally chartered stock savings bank.
At that time, a liquidation account was established
for the benefit of eligible account holders who
continue to maintain their account with the Bank
after the conversion. The liquidation account is
reduced annually to the extent that eligible account
holders have reduced their qualifying deposits.
At September 30, 1996, the liquidation account

approximated $3.8 million.

Under the Financial Institution’s Reform, Re-
covery, and Enforcement Act of 1989 (“FIRREA”)
and the Federal Deposit Insurance Act of 1991
(“FDICIA”), the capital requirements applicable to
all financial institutions, including First Federal and
Security, were substantially increased. First Federal
and Security are in full compliance with the fully
phased-in capital requirements. (See note 14 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices The
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes
thereto presented herein have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, which require the measurement of
financial position and operating results in terms of
historical dollars without considering the change in
the relative purchasing power of money over time
due to inflation. The primary impact of inflation is
reflected in the increased cost of the Company’s
operations. Unlike most industrial companies,
virtually all the assets and liabilities of the Company
are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates
generally have a more significant impact on a
financial institution’s performance than do the
effects of general levels of inflation. Interest rates do
not necessarily move in the same direction, or to the
same extent, as the prices of goods and services.

Impact of New Accounting Standards Several new
accounting standards have been issued by the FASB
that will apply for the year ending September 30,
1997. SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impair-
ment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed of,” requires a review of long-
term assets for impairment of recorded value and
resulting write-downs if the value is impaired. SFAS
No. 122, “Accounting for Mortgage Servicing
Rights,” requires recognition of an asset when
servicing rights are retained on in-house originated
loans that are sold. SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” encourages, but does
not require, entities to use a “fair value based
method” to account for stock-based compensation
plans and requires disclosure of the proforma effect
on net income and on earnings per share had the
accounting been adopted. SFAS No. 125,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities,” provides
accounting and reporting standards for transfers and
servicing of financial assets and extinguishment of
liabilities. Several transactions common to banking
are affected by SFAS No. 125, including servicing of
loans and other financial assets, repurchase
agreements, loan participations, asset securitiza-
tions, and transfers of receivables with recourse.
Adoption of these statements are not expected to
have a material effect on the Company’s consoli-
dated financial position or results of operations.







First Midwest Financial, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets September 30, 1996 and 1995
Assets 1996 1995
Cash and due from financial INSHEUIONS .v-vvevesiceeceesreemreemsaessssnssecsesmessasncsescs $ 736979 $ 453230
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions - short-term .......ccccvcu.... 4,743,636 4,162,482
Federal funds SOId.........cveuieciieeeeeee et se s s nne s 8,848,037 -
Total cash and cash equivalents ........cccocomurocen i e 14,328,652 4,615,712
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions
(cost approximates Market value) .......ccocmeoenimciincanneree v s ssseeses . 300,000 -
Securities available for sale ..ot 109,491,558 70,232,092
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses
of $2,356,113 in 1996 and $1,649,520 in 1995 ....ooeienincireireeremecemeraannces - 243,533,519 178,551,501
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) stock, at COSt .-...-..ioveercorrerrcecreserenseaneees 5,524,700 3,915,300
Accrued interest receivable........cooirieeioeeeeeeeeeee et e 5,029,047 2,745,747
Premises and equipment, net 3,680,332 1,976,647
Foreclosed real estate, net of allowances of $5, 000 in 1996 and
$-0- 10 1995 s ceee et s ere et ees ety e et e sr e et nna e ean 86,818 48,418
OEBET ASSELS wevvveneenmemmeeseesssseeessseessescesereeseseesmemsemmssesssessseseeneeseesseseses essereessesenes 6,033,672 2,127,806
TOUAL SSELS rrrrerereemeeeereerereessssesosesessessseessseesssemseneseessesesssecseeseessesscsessensone $388,008,298 $264,213,223

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

LIABILITIES

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits .........ceeqrrecimmereasersescssssnesrs e
Savings, NOW and money market demand deposn:s ..........................................
Other time certificates Of dEPOSIE ........cueereereeerreecerranmacseseessereses s rs e snessennns

Total deposits

Advances from FHLB.........cooioirie ettt s sas s s ssesnes
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase .........c.coooecveeriivenescnrccncnnencennes
Other DOTTOWINES ..o iceeereccermee e smeemssterearess s rscs s e smssst s e saeassesssans smseemens
Advances from borrowers for taxes and INSULANCE ......cevovvereevsnieesessnreresssnnenens
Accrued interest Payable........ovocecemercieeceineeeetreee e ee e enenas

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total RabilIties........oooeeeeeeeee ettt et et s oss s s amsee et st sans

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred stock, 800,000 shares authorized; none issued.......cccocrreerrerenueneicennne-

Common stock, $.01 par value; 5,200,000 shares authorized;
1,990,495 shares issued and 1,945,735 shares outstanding
at September 30, 1996; 1,991,453 shares issued and 1,794,025

shares outstanding at September 30, 1995 ........cceierencimrmecren e seeaenias

Additional paid-in capital.........ccccovovrinninneen
Retained earnings - substantially restricted
Net unrealized appreciation on securities available for sale,

net of tax of $18,324 in 1996 and $340,190in 1995 .......evrrecemreemiccicencrerines
Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares ...........ccocoeovvricinecnscrecesnens

Treasury stock, 44,760 and 197,428 common shares, at cost,

at September 30, 1996 and 1995, respectively ..-..ccciuiveireermreciresmsessesnereseaeas
Total shareholders’ eqUItY ... .cvociurerecerurrrrerenee e set s eseeesns e sessresmnsereeses

Total liabilities and shareholders’ eqUIty .........cveeuureeeseeresmseeessssseeemsmssneosas

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

$ 5,452,911

$ 2,076,671

49,358,478 40,407,661
178,594,337 129,308,665
233,405,726 171,792,997
102,287,803 51,098,388
2,789,918 1,149,918
1,400,000 -
490,243 501,522
1,271,465 788,008
3,153,441 869,694
344,798,596 226,200,527
19,905 19,915
20,862,551 19,310,045
23,748,383 22,080,579
28,698 571,564
(767,200) (967,200)
(682,635)  (3,002,207)
43209,702 _ 38,012,696

$388,008,298 $264,213,223




First Midwest Financial, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994

INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME
Loans receivable.........oouioiviiicciii i ceriecereree e rse s son s enan

Securities held to maturity
Dividends on FHLB stock

INTEREST EXPENSE

Deposits ..

FHLB advances and other borrowings .....ccceueevrevecmceec.c.

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FOR LOAN LOSSES ......oouicititrtnt ettt

NONINTEREST INCOME
Loan fees and service charges ........ccocevcveernemssncsesesssnerennac
Gain on sales of securities available for sale, net ..................
Gain (loss) on sales of foreclosed real estate, net..................
Brokerage COMITUSSIONS ...c..cccurrercscnruesssssanisssssnienssesas eeaeas
Other income...................... emeerrreeseeoeeesereaarsat s teaenr et renens

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Employee compensation and benefits .......ccoocvrrreereeancerneanes

Occupancy

and eqUIPMENE EXPENSE......cccemrurmreirrereressanerosans

SAIF deposit iNSUrance Premium ......-.ocveeeeeremveeeivessssnecsnees
Data processing eXpense .........ocvieeeicreemieresserseseressssmiesnsneneas
Other eXPense ......ooeoveeereeeeeee et

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND CUMULATIVE
EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES ......

INCOME TAX EXPENSE ... ceenenenre s s s amsme s

INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES.......ccccc0ovvaeemenne.

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES:
Change in method of accounting for income taxes ..............

NET INCOME

EARNINGS PER COMMON AND COMMON
EQUIVALENT SHARE
Fully diluted:
Income before cumulative effect of
changes in accounting principles ......-ouoreeeeeeeereisrecans
Cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles .-.....o.ovcceevviveeeiceee e

NET INCOME

$18,567,097
5,437,734

332,634
24,337,465

9,766,586

4,212,024

13,978,610

10,358,855

100,000

10,258,855

830,256 -

79,317
(8,630)
292,189
226,163

1,419,295

3,732,839
668,784
1,699,363
289,390
1,177,886

7,568,262

4,109,888

1,696,323

2,413,565

$ 2,413,565

$1.34

$1.34

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

1995 1984
$13,768,064 $ 9,743,957
7,015,145 3,842,930

- 1,400,824

270,261 164,980
21,053,470 15,152,691
8,245,227 6,102,042
3,403,497 1,180,452
11,648,724 7,282,494
9,404,746 7,870,197
250,000 105,000
9,154,746 7,765,197
712,345 597,984
1,070,247 9,170
297,777 328,343
206,101 142,270
2,286,470 1,077,767
3,400,190 3,079,769
432,571 316,375
404,306 350,314
291,961 200,219
1,047,149 991,020
5,576,177 4,937,697
5,865,039 3,905,267
2,320,687 1,433,519
3,544,352 2,471,748

- 257,163

$ 3,544,352 $2,728,911
$1.99 $1.24

13

$1.99

$1.37



First Midwest Financial, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Years Ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994

Net Unrealized
Appreciation
{Depreciation) on Uneamed
Additional Secwrities Avail-  Employee Stock Totul
Common Paid-in Retained  able-For-Sale, Ownership Treasury  Shareholders’
Stock Capital Eamnings Net of Tax Pian Shares Stock Equity
Balance at October 1, 1993 $§ 19,886 $18480,114 $16,322411 § - $(1,384100) § $33,438,311
Reduction of conversion costs 93,210 - - - 93,210
Purchase of 135,716 common
shares of treasury stock - ; - ; - (2070,177)  (2,070,177)
19,810 common shares committed
to be released under the ESOP - - - 198,100 - 198,100
Issuance of 4,794 shares in
connection with recognition
and retention plan 48 (48) - - - - -
Retirement of 1,918 common shares  (19) 19 - - - -
Amortization of recognition and
retention plan common shares 381,897 - - 381,897
Net change in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation)
on securities available for
sale, net of tax of ($43,568) - - - (86,964) - - (86,964)
Net income for the year ended
September 30, 1994 ; - 2,728911 . - 2,728,911
Balance at September 30,1994 § 19,915 $18,955,192 $19,051,322 § (86,964) $(1,186,000) $(2,070,177) $34,683,288
Purchase of 61,712 common
shares of treasury stock - - - (932,030) (932,030)
21,880 common shares committed
to be released under the ESOP - 87,789 - 218,800 - 306,589
Amortization of recognition and
retention plan common shares
and tax benefit of restricted
stock under plan - 267,064 - - - - 267,064
Cash dividends declared on
common stock ($-30 per share) - - (515,095) - - - (515,095)
Net change in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation)
on securities available for
sale, net of tax of $383,758 - - 658,528 - 658,528
Net income for the year ended
September 30, 1995 3,544,352 - - 3,544,352
Balance at September 30,1995 $§ 19,915 $19,310,045 $22,080,579 § 571,564 $ (967,200) $(3,002,207) $38,012,696



Consolidated Statements of Changes in Sharehelders’ Equity (Cortinued) Years Ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994

Net Unvealized
Avoreciation
(Deprecistion) on Uneamed
Additional Securities Avail-  Employes Stuck Total
Common Paid-in Retained  able-For-Sale, Ownership Treasury  Shareholders’
Stock Capital Eamings Net of Tax Plan Shares Stock Equity

Balance at September 30,1995 § 19,915 $19,310,045 $22,080,579 $ 571,564 § (967,200) §(3,002,207) $38,012,696

Purchase of 27,940 common
shares of treasury stock - - - - - (630,710) (630,710)

Retirement of 958 common shares (10 10 - - - - .

20,000 common shares committed
to be released under the ESOP - 303,524 - - 200,000 !

503,524

Amortization of recognition and
retention plan common shares
and tax benefit of restricted i
stock under the plan - 168,120 - - - ! 168,120

Cash dividends declared on
common stock ($.44 per share) -

(745,761) - -

(745,761)

Issuance of 171,158 common
shares from treasury stock in
connection with acquisition of
Central West Bancorporation - 1,192,990 - - -

N

/43,644 3,936,634

Issuance of 9,450 common shares
from treasury stock due to
exercise of stock options - (112,138) - - - 206,638 94,500

Net change in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) on
securities available for sale,
net of tax of ($321,366) - -

(542,866) -

(542,866)

Net income for the year ended
September 30, 1996 - - 2,413,565 - -

2,413,565

Balance at September 30,1996 § 19,905 $20,862,551 $23,748383 § 28,698 $ (767,200) $ (682,635) $43,209,702

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




First Midwest Financial, Inc. and Su

Consslidated Statements of Cash Flows

bsidiaries

Yoars Ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NEet INCOME .....oecveererrmerrrrcmereretcererssenrenresereane

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

from operating activities:

Cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles..........
Depreciation, amortization and accretion, net............ococoussees

Provision for loan losses .........cccccceverercrennann.
Provision for losses on foreclosed real estate
Gain on sales of securities available for sale,

¢ (- N

Proceeds from the sales of loans held for sale .........cccococvevenune

Originations of loans held for sale................
Stock dividends from FHLB stock ................
(Gain) loss on sales of office property, net....
(Gain) loss on sales of foreclosed real estate,
Net change in interest receivable ..................
Net change in other assets _.........ccoocccvveencne
Net change in accrued interest payable ........

Net change in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash from operating activities ............

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

11| R

Net change in interest-bearing deposits in other

financial iNSGEHONS ......eeeceeeercreteiccrenenrenreess
Purchase of securities available for sale
Purchase of securities held to maturity

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale ....................
Proceeds from maturities and principal repayment of

mortgage-backed securities available for sale

Proceeds from maturities and principal repayment of

mortgage-backed securities held to maturity..
Loans purchased
Net change in loans..........ccocveeecveevcvereecrecereecne
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed real estate.....
Purchase of FHLB Stock .........c.oeeurereueeseneeca.

Purchase of Community Financial Systems, Inc.,

net of cash received ........cocoreeeeecererecniens

Purchase of Iowa Bancorp, Inc., net of cash received ................

Purchase of Central West Bancorporation, net
TECEIVEA ..o crncrme e s reme e neenaas
Purchase of premises and equipment, net
Proceeds from sales of assets ..........oeccrrervennene
Net cash from investing activities ................

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net change in noninterest-bearing demand,

of cash

savings, NOW, and money market demand deposits...............

Net change in other time deposits .........ccccreu-.. .

Proceeds from advances from FHLB................
Repayments of advances from FHLB ..............

Net change in securities sold under agreements to repurchase........
Net change in advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance ..

Cash dividends paid .........ocoeivemrormiiccecrecncae
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ..........
Purchase of treasury stock.......ccovevrrerinsnennns

Net cash from financing activities ............

Net change in cash and cash equivalents ............

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR....................

1996 1985 1994
$2,413,565 $3,544,352 $2,728,911
- - (257,163)

907,721 697,879 690,755
100,000 250,000 105,000
20,000 - -
(79,317) (1,070,247) (9,170)
1,064,000 - -
(1,064,000) - -
(78,900) - -
(24,739) - -
8,630 - -
(1,406,034) (504,937) (221,613)
(399,200 (55,643) 5,181
348,940 (47,662) 350,455
1,689,497 (122,777) (343,537)
3,500,163 2,690,965 3,048,819
(300,000) - -
(120,994,759) (31,580,132) (10,342,303)
- (11,888,625) (66,050,121)

366,829 49,445,258 16,136,827
95,068,472 29,105,289 15,975,260
- 27,205 8,256,744
(24,975,540) (19,211,940) (22,059,813)
(3,599,754) (4,280,762) (2,281,756)
132,842 78,738 2,000
(1,355,100) (899,800) (1,134,900)

_ - - (6,801,434)
(5,217,265) - -
(229,430) - )
(845,380) (581,126) (34,366)
72,925 - -
(61,876,160) 10,214,105 (68,333,862)
(295,265) (5,082,644) (5,066,686)
18,548,037 708,934 1,829,381
210,000,000 246,000,000 298,300,000
(160,510,585) (255,209,677)  (240,308,847)
1,640,000 240,000 (1,488,152)
(11,279) 70,919 (24,545)
(745,761) (515,095) -
94,500 - -
(630,710) (932,030 (2,070,177)
68,088,937 {14,719,593) 51,170,974
9,712,940 (1,814,523) (14,114,069)
4,615,712 6,430,235 20,544,304
$14,328,652 $4,615,712 $6,430,235




First Midwest Financial, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Years Ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for:

T ¢ S O

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and
financing activities

Loans transferred to foreclosed real estate ..........ccoocveviennenne.

Issuance of common stock for purchase of

Central West Bancorporation ..........cecceuue S

1996 1995 1994
$13,629,670 $11,696,386 $6,594,377
1,736,192 2,366,886 1,463,427
$ 220,474 $ 129,408 $ -
3,936,634 ] )

The accomparrying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

First Midwest Financial, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 1936, 1995 and 1994

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General: First Midwest Financial, Inc. (the
“Company”) is located in Storm Lake, Iowa, and
was organized and incorporated under the laws of
the State of Delaware for the purpose of acquiring
all of the capital stock to be issued by First Federal
Savings Bank of the Midwest (the “Bank” or “First
Federal”) upon the conversion described below.

On September 20, 1993, First Federal Savings and
Loan Association of Storm Lake (the “Association”)
was converted from a federally chartered mutual
savings and loan association to a federally chartered

stock savings bank and the name of the Association -

was changed to First Federal Savings Bank of the
Midwest.

Principles of Consolidation and Nature of Business
and Industry Segment Information: The consolidat-
ed financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, which
include the Bank, Security State Bank (“Security”),
First Services Financial Limited, which offers broker-
age services and non-insured investment products,
and Brookings Service Corporation. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated.

The primary source of income for the Company is
the purchase or origination of commercial, commer-
cial real estate, and residential real estate loans. See
Note 4 for a discussion of concentrations of credit
risk. The Company accepts deposits from customers
in the normal course of business primarily in north-
west and central Iowa and eastern South Dakota.
The Company operates primarily in the banking
industry which accounts for more than 90% of its
revenues, operating income and assets.

Assets held in trust or fiduciary capacity are not
assets of the Company and, accordingly, are not
included in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. At September 30, 1996 and 1995, trust
assets totaled approximately $10,172,000 and
$9,245,000, respectively.

Use of Estimates in Preparing Financial Statements:
The preparation of financial statements in conformi-
ty with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could dif-
fer from those estimates.

Certain Significant Estimates: The allowance for
loan losses, deferred income tax provisions, fair val-
ues of securities and other financial instruments, the
determination and carrying value of impaired loans,
goodwill amortization and depreciation of premises
and equipment, involve certain significant estimates
made by management. These estimates are reviewed
by management routinely and it is reasonably possi-
ble that circumstances that exist at September 30,
1996 may change in the near-term future and that
the effect could be material to the financial state-
ments.

Certain Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentra-
tions: Management is of the opinion that no con-
centrations exist that make the Company vulnerable
to the risk of near-term severe impact.




Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of
reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents is
defined to include the Company’s cash on hand and
due from financial institutions and short-term interest-
bearing deposits in other financial institutions. The
Company reports net cash flows for customer loan
transactions, deposit transactions, interest-bearing
deposits in other financial institutions, and short-
term borrowings with maturities of 90 days or less.

Securities: Effective October 1, 1993, the Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 115, “Accounting
for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities”. The Company now classifies securities
as securities held to maturity, available for sale and
trading securities. Securities held to maturity are
those which the Company has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity, and are reported at
amortized cost. Securities available for sale are those
the Company may decide to sell if needed for liquidi-
ty, asset-liability management or other reasons.
Securities available for sale are reported at fair value,
with unrealized gains and losses included as a sepa-
rate component of shareholders’ equity, net of tax.
Trading securities are bought principally for sale in
the near term, and are reported at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses included in earnings.
The effect of adopting SFAS No. 115 was not mater-
ial to the consolidated financial statements.

In implementing SFAS No. 115, the Company
originally designated the securities and mortgage-
backed securities held at October 1, 1993 as avail-
able-for-sale securities. Securities acquired since
October 1, 1993 have been designated at acquisition
as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity, however, in
May 1995, all securities previously designated as
held-to-maturity, including mortgage-backed securi-
ties, were transferred to the available-for-sale catego-
ry. The Company does not have any securities clas-
sified as held-to-maturity or trading at September
30, 1996 or 1995. Although the Company does not
have a current intent to sell the securities available
for sale, and it is management’s opinion that the
Company has the ability to hold these securities to
maturity, management considers the designation as
available-for-sale to provide flexibility in adjusting
the composition of the securities portfolio as may
become desirable in the future.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities are
determined using the specific identification method
based on amortized cost and are reflected in results
of operations at the time of sale. Interest and divi-
dend income, adjusted by amortization of purchase
premium or discount over the estimated life of the
security using the level yield method, is included in
earnings.

Loans Held for Sale: Mortgage loans originated and
intended for sale in the secondary market are carried
at the lower of cost or estimated market value in the
aggregate. Net unrealized losses are recognized in a
valuation allowance by charges to income.

Loans: Loans receivable that management has the
intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future
or until maturity or pay-off are reported at their out-
standing principal balances adjusted for any charge-
offs, the allowance for loan losses, any deferred fees
or costs on originated loans and any unamortized
premiums or discounts on purchased loans.

Premiums or discounts on purchased loans are
amortized to income using the level yield method
over the remaining period to contractual maturity,
adjusted for anticipated prepayments.

Interest income on loans is accrued over the term
of the loans based upon the amount of principal out-
standing except when serious doubt exists as to the
collectibility of a loan, in which case the accrual of
interest is discontinued. Interest income is subse-
quently recognized only to the extent that cash pay-
ments are received until, in management’s judgment,
the borrower has the ability to make contractual
interest and principal payments, in which case the
loan is returned to accrual status.

Loan Origination Fees, Commitment Fees and
Related Costs: Loan fees and certain direct loan
origination costs are deferred, with the net fee or
cost recognized as an adjustment to interest income
using the interest method.

Allowance for Loan Losses: Because some loans
may not be repaid in full, an allowance for loan loss-
es is recorded. The allowance for loan losses is
increased by a provision for loan losses charged to
expense and decreased by charge-offs (net of recov-
eries). Estimating the risk of loss and the amount of
loss on any loan is necessarily subjective. Manage-
ment’s periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the
allowance is based on the Company’s past loan loss
experience, known and inherent risks in the portfo-
lio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s
ability to repay, the estimated value of any underly-
ing collateral, and current economic conditions.
While management may periodically allocate por-
tions of the allowance for specific problem loan situ-
ations, the whole allowance is available for any loan
charge-offs that occur.

SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan”, as amended by SFAS No.
118, was adopted effective October 1, 1995 and
requires recognition of loan impairment. Loans are
considered impaired if full principal or interest pay-
ments are not anticipated in accordance with the




contractual loan terms. Impaired loans are carried
at the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or at
the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. A portion of the allowance for loan loss-
es is allocated to impaired loans if the value of such
loans is deemed to be less than the unpaid balance.
If these allocations cause the allowance for loan loss-
es to require an increase, such increase is reported as
a component of the provision for loan losses. The
effect of adopting these standards was not material
to the consolidated financial statements.

Smaller-balance homogeneous loans are evaluated
for impairment in total. Such loans include residen-
tial first mortgage loans secured by one-to-four fami-
ly residences, residential construction loans, and
automobile, manufactured homes, home equity and
second mortgage loans. Commercial loans and
mortgage loans secured by other properties are eval-
uated individually for impairment. When analysis of
borrower operating results and financial condition
indicates that underlying ‘cash flows of the borrow-
er’s business are not adequate to meet its debt service
requirements, the loan is evaluated for impairment.
Often this is associated with a delay or shortfall in
payments of 90 days or more. Nonaccrual loans are
often also considered impaired. Impaired loans, or
portions thereof, are charged off when deemed
uncollectible. The nature of disclosures for impaired
loans is considered generally comparable to prior
nonaccrual and renegotiated loans and non-perform-
ing and past due asset disclosures.

Foreclosed Real Estate: Real estate properties
acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are
initially recorded at fair value at the date of acquisi-
tion, establishing a new cost basis. Any reduction to
fair value from the carrying value of the related loan
at the time of acquisition is accounted for as a loan
loss and charged against the allowance for loan loss-
es. Valuations are periodically performed by man-
agement and valuation allowances are adjusted
through a charge to income for changes in fair value
or estimated selling costs.

Income Taxes: Effective October 1, 1993, the
Company adopted SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes”. Under SFAS No. 109 deferred tax
assets and liabilities are reflected at currently enacted
income tax rates applicable to the period in which
the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to
be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or
rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are adjusted through income tax expense.

The effect of applying the provisions of SFAS No.

" 109 resulted in a one-time adjustment that increased

net income for the year ended September 30, 1994
by $257,163 ($.13 per share) recorded as a cumula-
tive effect of a change in accounting principles.

Premises and Equipment: Land is carried at cost.
Buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment are car-
ried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization computed principally by using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets ranging from 3 to 40 years.

Employee Stock Oumership Plan: Effective October
1, 1994, the Company began to account for its
employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”) in accor-
dance with AICPA Statement of Position (“SOP”)
93-6. Under SOP 93-6, the cost of shares issued to
the ESOP, but not yet allocated to participants, are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
condition as a reduction of shareholders’ equity.
Compensation expense is recorded based on the
market price of the shares as they are committed to
be released for allocation to participant accounts.
The difference between the market price and the cost
of shares committed to be released is recorded as an
adjustment to additional paid-in capital. Dividends
on allocated ESOP shares are recorded as a reduc-
tion of retained earnings; dividends are not paid on
unearned ESOP shares. :

ESOP shares are considered outstanding for earn-
ings per share calculations as they are committed to
be released; unearned shares are not considered out-
standing. :

Prior to the adoption of SOP 93-6, the expense
recorded relative to the ESOP was limited to the
principal repayment on the loan and the earnings per
share calculation included as outstanding all
153,410 shares of common stock owned by the
ESOP.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk:
The Company, in the normal course of business,
makes commitments to make loans which are not
reflected in the financial statements. A summary of
these commitments is disclosed in Note 135.

Intangible Assets: Goodwill arising from the acqui-
sition of subsidiary banks is amortized over 15 years
using the straight-line method. As of September 30,
1996 and 1995, unamortized goodwill totaled
$5,090,958 and $1,689,776, respectively. Amortiza-
tion expense was $170,070, $125,160 and $62,584 for
the years ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and
1994, respectively.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase:
The Company enters into sales of securities under
agreements to repurchase with primary dealers only,
which provide for the repurchase of the same securi-
ty. Securities sold under agreements to purchase
identical securities are collateralized by assets which
are held in safekeeping in the name of the Bank by
the dealers who arranged the transaction. Securities
sold under agreements to repurchase are treated as




and the obligations to repurchase such
ties are reflected as a liability. The securities
underlying the agreements remain in the asset
accounts of the Company.

Eamin Per Share: Earrungs per common share is
comﬁuted by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding and
common share equivalents which would arise from
considering dilutive stock options. The difference
betw¢en primary and fully diluted carmngs per share

Note 2 - Acquisitions

On March 28, 1994 the Company acquired 100%
of the common stock of Community Financial
Systems, Inc. (“Community”), and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Brookings Federal Bank, a federal savings
bank, in a purchase transaction with $69 million in
assets. Each share of Community’s common stock
was exchanged for $31.38 in cash. The Company

Net INUETESt INCOME ..evvumeiemiermicieemeeseresressesneeseiesessessssmemsamsessnsens
INEt INGOIME .eovreeeecseiereerrmrretrremternrerassan s eesanevnresssnrsnnneasotesmsennsns

Earnings per common and common equivalent share
Fully diluted:

INEL INCOME ..cvniveiiireemriesserre s sresmte e sns e sena e sseanteasenae

On December 29, 1995, the Company acquired
100% of the common stock of Iowa Bancorp, Inc.
(“Iowa Bancorp”), and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Iowa Savings Bank, a federal savings bank, in a pur-
chase transaction with $25 million in assets. Each
share of Iowa Bancorp’s common stock was
exchanged for $20.39 in cash. The Company paid
approximately $8 million. Iowa Bancorp’s results of

is not material. The weighted average nymber of
shares for calculating fully diluted earnings per com-

mon share is:

Yoar ondod Soptomber 3, 1935 198 1994
Fully diluted ........... 1,798,973 1,780,592 1,988,064
Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the 1995 and

1994 consolidated financial statements were reclassi-
fied to conform with the 1996 presentation.

paid approximately $10.5 million. Community’s
results of operations are included in the consolidated
income statement of the Company beginning as of
the purchase date.

Presented below are the proforma results of oper-
ations of the Company for the year ended September
30, 1994, assuming the Community acquisition had
occurred as of October 1, 1993.

$8,819,577
2,804,020

................................................................... $1.41

operations are included in the consolidated income
statement of the Company beginning as of the pur-
chase date.

Presented below are the proforma results of oper-
ations of the Company for the years ended
September 30, 1996 and 1995, assuming the Iowa
Bancorp acquisition had occurred as of the begin-
ning of each fiscal year.

1996 1995
INEt INEELEST IMCOIME -.-uveerseecaeecemeasscamraeessesesesesessarss emmesssosssmsnsasesmtesesmressvotarassraseseseesserare $10,467,578 $9,872,849
N IOOIMIE .eeeeeeeeeoeereeeeeeeeeemsesesseeseesenesesmesseesseeteesesasessesssseeeesssssseeeesesressrasessssesestrcemeene 2,268,794 3,569,052
Eamings per common and common equivalent share
Fully diluted:
INEE ICOME ....vveveerresereasresnesssessastsesenesssstssesssessssssnssesssnesasasssesssmsssessressessasassesssnssnnes $1.2¢6 $2.00

On September 30, 1996, the Company acquired
100% of the common stock of Central West
Bancorporation (“Central West”), and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Security State Bank, in a purchase
transaction with $33 million in assets. Each share of
Central West’s common stock was exchanged for
$18.04 in cash and 2.3528 shares of the Company’s
common stock. The Company paid approximately
$1.3 million and issued 171,158 common shares val-

ued at $23 per share for a total value of $3,936,634.
Central West’s results of operations are included in
the consolidated income statement of the Company
beginning as of the purchase date.

Presented below are the consolidated proforma
results of operations of the Company for the years
ended September 30, 1996 and 1995, assuming the
Central West acquisition had occurred as of the
beginning of each fiscal year.



1996 1995
Net interest income : $11,326,730  $10,265,360
INEE AICOIME . eveveeeeeeeeeeemreseeemesseceessessessesssemesseseemsereseemsseese s esessemssseseresessesmssseneerene 2,410,218 3,481,751
Earnings per common and common equivalent share
Fully diluted:
[ T e ¢ T S $1.22 $1.78
Note 3 - Securities
The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale are as follows:
September 30, 1996
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
DEBT SECURITIES
Obligations of states and political subdivisions $ 1,392,354 $ - $ - $ 1,392,354
U.S. Government and federal agencies .......... 69,595,584 63,693 (450,111) 69,209,166
Corporate Obligations .......c.eecvesreeereresmsesesesnss 199,971 2,466 - 202,437
Mortgage-backed Securities -.............ccoooowe.ee. 35,278,943 633,751 (326,380) 35,586,314
106,466,852 699,910 (776,491) 106,390,271
MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES .................. 2,977,684 125,983 (2,380) 3,101,287
$109,444,536 $ 825,893 $ (778,871) $109,491,558
September 30, 1995
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
DEBT SECURITIES
U.S. Government and federal agencies ............ $ 45,442279 $ 157,179 $ (87,473) $ 45,511,985
Corporate obligations..........ccoeerreeecsssearerccnnnnas 1,050,569 7,368 (62) 1,057,875
Mortgage-backed SECUFIties -.........ocoerreeen. 20,658,802 817,761 (73,574) 21,402,989
67,151,650 982,308 (161,109) 67,972,849
MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES .................. 2,168,688 90,555 - 2,259,243
$ 69,320,338 $1!072!863 $ (161,109) $ 70,232,092

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity are shown below. Expected
maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay

obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

September 30, 1996
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due in 0ne year or less........cccocoeiirricceirierc et eeese e earms e ese st eese b essesnens $ 43,968,463 § 43977423
Due after one year through five years ...«cccoo.vereeceeveecri et 21,224,420 20,891,552
Due after five years through ten years 5,696,876 5,636,832
DUE QftEr LTEN YEALS...creeueeeereecrrcetereeessreeecsse st et tesassssestete st sentssessssesaeesotss s e sesmense 298,150 298,150
_ 71,187,909 70,803,957
Mortgage-backed SECULIHES ...o.-cuueerrreecrenrre e e st re e sme st reesaesebee b sase s 35,278,943 35,586,314
$106,466,852 $106,390,271




Activities related to the sale of securities available for sale and mortgage-backed securities available for

sale are summarized as follows:

Years Ended September 30,
1996 1995 1994
Proceeds From Sales ........cceocvieveereeeremereees v enseerecemeesee e reeae et seanan $366,829 $49,445258 $16,136,827
Gross gains ON SAlES ...o....ccceimrerierctnirreesermscst st sbee s s i s e s e et 79,317 1,070,247 80,666
Gross 105565 ON SAlES.....cuecueeveerccecre i cenrre e sras s sscereaanseaceeasaens - - 71,496

During the period ended September 30, 1994,
there were no sales of securities held to maturity or
transfers of securities between available for sale and
held to maturity. In May 1995, the Company reclas-
sified all securities, including mortgage-backed secu-
rities, previously designated as held to maturity to
the available for sale category. The reclassification
was performed after consideration by management
of a pending regulatory policy clarification in regard
to the measurement of interest sensitivity of floating-

rate mortgage-backed securities. It was manage-
ment’s opinion that the pending regulatory policy
clarification provided sufficient potential risk to

‘the market value of this type of security to war-

rant reclassification of the securities held by the
Company to the available or sale designation. The
amortized cost and approximate fair value of securi-
ties and mortgage-backed securities that were trans-
ferred to the available for sale category were
$77,832,845 and $78,948,854, respectively.

Note 4 - Loans Receivable, Net

Loans receivable as of September 30 are summarized as follows:

1996 1995

One to four family residential mortgage loans:

Insured by FHA or guaranteed by VA ..o s eeenses $ 502,786 $ 599,019

CONVENHONAL .....oeeeuirmieecrcreraeseesricetssessessssse s st st sesssesacs e sorassmsne e seemeneanemsaeas 77,973,057 56,674,526
COMBETUCHON 1 v-veeeeeneeeeeeeeees s saeeeeeereseesesessssssseeeeseseeseet e eeseessemsesseessessssscmeeseeeeeee 7,819,129 17,877,327
Commercial and multi-family real estate 10ans ........cocoooveieecicrncieee e 85,157,278 73,418,931
AZACUIUTA] FEA] ESEALE JOAIS -...ceneeeeeerererererensecemeneeneeemeesestesseseesseresesssesseeseresessesssssacs 11,068,059 7,021,264
Commercial business J0ans ..........c.covecvuereieissenrererrseesesseseseesssresssessessesessesssessenas 15,468,175 8,172,989
Agricultural business 10ans .........cccoceeereeinienes et seennan 30,364,235 11,905,367
CONSUMET 10AIS ... ...cucemiererermrcami e s sats e s sevmsesereaesir e sebrmeesme s sivnsaesesaesesraranas 20,427,632 13,007,467

248,780,351 188,676,890

Less: Allowance for 10an LOSSes. . .......cveveeceminenenivnsirecess s steesssasas eeseseaeanns (2,356,113) (1,649,520)

Undistributed portion of 10ans in PrOCESS ---u..-evereeeeeesrreesnrrecemerasserssessseans (2,240,373) (8,071,693)

Net deferred loan origination fEs ..........oueiieemrcrcermemsmrcrceerveee e eceecneseeaes (650,346) (404,176)

$243,533,519 $178,551,501

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended September 30 is summarized as follows:

Balance at beginning of year.........ccooeeeemrmernecreecrcecnensececeans

Provision for loan losses ..........c.vccorreeorrrerieesercrense e,
Community allowance at acquisition date .........cccooeceemeecrcrreanas
Iowa Bancorp allowance at acquisition date .........cc.ccovveecmecncnce
Central West allowance at acquisition date .........c.ccocerevrcccecrnneen
Charge-0ffs ..c.coceeeucecere et cenrase s e eeeen e e s s ms e enenas

Balance at end of Year........cccocveeiiienieeriseesess e s

1996 1995 1994
...... $1,649,520 $1,442,077  $ 825,000
...... 100,000 250,000 105,000
...... - - 517,781
...... 132,500 - -
...... 563,310 - -
...... (89,217) (42,557) (5,704)
...... $2,356,113 $1,649,520  $1,442,077




Virtually all of the Company’s originated loans
are to lowa and South Dakota-based individuals and
organizations. The Company’s purchased loans
totalled approximately $76,444,000 at September
30, 1996 and were secured by properties located, as
a percentage of total loans, as follows: 8% in
Wisconsin, 5% in Minnesota, 4% in Iowa, 2% in
South Dakota, 2% in New York, 2% in Nebraska,
2% in North Dakota and the remaining 7% in thir-
teen other states. The Bank’s purchased loans
totalled approximately $78,760,000 at September
30, 1995 and were secured by properties located, as
a percentage of total loans as follows: 11% in
Wisconsin, 7% in Minnesota, 5% in Iowa, 4% in
South Dakota, 3% in New York and the remaining
14% in fifteen other states.

* The Company originates and purchases commer-
cial real estate loans. These loans are considered by
management to be of somewhat greater risk of
uncollectibility due to the dependency on income
production. The Company’s commercial real estate
loans include approximately $8,766,000 and
$7,430,000 of loans secured by nursing homes at
September 30, 1996 and 1995, respectively. The
remainder of the commercial real estate portfolio is
diversified by industry. The Company’s policy for
requiring collateral and guarantees varies with the
creditworthiness of each borrower.

The amount of restructured and related party
loans as of September 30, 1996 and 1995 were not
significant. The amount of non-accruing loans as of

September 30, 1996 and 1995 were $2,646,000 and

$711,000, respectively.

Information regarding impaired loans is as follows for the year ended September 30, 1996:

Average investment in iMPaired lOANS .......iciueeieer ittt s e et $ 405,000
Interest income recognized on impaired loans including interest income
recognized 0n Cash Dasis ...t e e e 78,000
Interest income recognized on impaired loans on cash basis ... 78,000
Information regarding impaired loans at year end is as follows.
Balance of impaired LOAnS ........c.ueeveeeeeeeeieciineteesseeemsee s e s ececsmecsen e st sesreses s s snemasssaeesatesneemtosacns $1,623,000
Less portion for which no allowance for loan losses is allocated ..........ccccceerrvimniececueerererieessesesnns (1,623,000)
Portion of impaired loan balance for which an allowance for loan losses
T 1T O OOV $ -
Portion of allowance for loan losses allocated to the impaired loan balance .........ccccoovvuereeeecernnenes $ -
Note 5 - Foreclosed Real Estate
Foreclosed real estate as of September 30 is summarized as follows:
1996 1995
Foreclosed real eState ..o nicnneessmtne e st rees st s semsnt st neann s $91,818 $48,418
Less: Allowance for foreclosed real estate 10SSES ........ocveermerrrmeiierecrenssmrecsricesssteseecss (5,000) -
$86,818 $48,418

A summary of the activity in the allowance for foreclosed real estate losses for the years ended September

30 is as follows:

199% 1995 1994
Balance, beginning of period ........cccceeoccrrrecmriimeceereee e et $ - $ - $ 10,897
Provision for losses on foreclosed real estate ........cocoeeeiiceiecceccerecniecnenns 20,000 - -
Less: Losses charged against allowance........c.ocoeovecueoroniecrorsecsesmec s (15,000) (10,897)
Balance, end of Period .......ccvirerrmsrrvnrrcine e e

$ 5,000 $ - $ -




Note 6 - Loan Serviciag
Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
The unpaid principal balances of these loans at September 30 is summarized as follows:

Mortgage loan portfolios serviced for FNMA ........coccoerinermemsinssictvsmecsssssessserens $1,748,000 $1,630,000

Custodial escrow balances maintained in connection with the foregoing loan servicing were approximate-
ly $48,000 and $45,000 at September 30, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

Note 7 - Premises and Equipment, Net
Premises and equipment at September 30 are summarized as follows:

199 1995

T O YU $ 535233 $ 446,547
BUILAINES .-1oveeeeeicreetemiercceeseeteeesesessesce st sone e e s emnes s honeme s beee s b e e saren e recene 3,979,312 2,685,197
Furniture, fixtures and eqUiPMENt ........ccvceeveerieeincamssiinenssnssnesssse st semsssseasnes 2,078,258 1,929,692
. 6,592,803 5,061,436

Less accumulated depreciation .......c..covoceimiiveesiesvnmesssssesssecsssssenesessasessssssmseen (2,912,471) (3,084,789)

$3,680,332 $1,976,647

Depreciation of premises and equipment, included in occupancy and equipment expense, was $214,201,
$134,733 and $91,061 for the years ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

Note 8 - Deposits
The aggregate amount of short-term jumbo certificates of deposit in denomination of $100,000 or more
was approximately $12,463,000 and $6,957,500 at September 30, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

At September 30, 1996, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit were as follows for the years
ended September 30:

1997 eeeereeeeee st eeees et ettt soeeet e st e s e ene et et eemeebee et eme e aeAebeenetSoeseee s b See sememeeeemee e eeiea betee s st nensseaeras $126,312,353
1998 .ot e eeees et reaseeveseeeasareesee st st seneane et s aseneeeasenenese e aneseees bt sene et sree s armreeeananmee e aennrenenarane 38,701,778
1999 et eeeeeeee st ereeaeareseerane e reeeatnees sttt oo e et et anaeneeeaneea e ot seaneesaeesantseneanaetas et et reanaetseaenanens 11,158,153
P00 ) O 1,580,664
2001 AN ChETEAFLET ..n.eveeeeeeeeeemreees e eeeeeeeeesereseesseeseseasaseseessemsesesaneseeeseesesesmeeseseseasanesesesresesensaeseaesees 841,389

$178,594,337

Note 9 - Advances From Federal Home Loan Bank
At September 30, 1996, advances from the FHLB of Des Moines with fixed and variable rates ranging
from 4.59% to 7.82% mature in the year ending September 30 as follows:

1997 eereeererecee st s st s e et s et AR bt e A e pA R eb et hete bt e s see e et nt e et epen s ane s e seeemraneeeeeraneeen $ 69,850,000
1998 ettt et et eeet s teeee et eeeree pe e e Seasea ek ees e St hem e RA et eearbaenne e et et sen e et eneae e reneeaetreaemrnen : 23,550,000
199D oot eetsetse et e sees s e et e semas et RaemEAeme At s mes st AR bAoA e eseae bt e eneenae et eem et enaemeteeeemren 200,000
2000 ... et eceter e sesheseseee et seaeeesee s Reeee st eaeasea e et emtesemeeseberaee st seeeshesenebtmanascerasbersme e eemtereteree 600,000
2001 and thereafter ...........cooo i et e et e e s st e sare teestess st be s somsmtsaseseasans seeeaesapanes ’ 8,087,803

$102,287,803



The Bank has executed a blanket pledge whereby
the Bank assigns, transfers and pledges to the FHLB
and grants to the FHLB a security interest in all
property now or hereafter owned. However, the
Bank has the right to use, commingle and dispose
of the collateral it has assigned to the FHLB. Under
the agreement, the Bank must maintain “eligible col-
lateral” that has a “lending value” at least equal to

the “required collateral amount”, all as defined by
the agreement.

At September 30, 1996 and 1995, the Bank pledged
securities with amortized costs of approximately
$61,163,000 and $22,500,000 and fair values of
approximately $60,605,000 and $22,468,000
against specific FHLB advances. In addition, quali-
fying mortgage loans of approximately $69,296,000
were pledged as collateral at September 30, 1996.

Note 10 - Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
At September 30, 1996 and 1995, securities sold under agreements to repurchase totaled $2,789,918

and $1,149,918, respectively.

An analysis of securities sold under agreements to repurchase is as follows:

Yoars ended September 30,

1996 1995

Highest month-end balance ..........ccoccoieveucucesiciie e temee s bere et sssseetreasees $2,789,918 $1,312,411

Average balance ...t e e s nrennn 2,197,611 1,139,431
Weighted average interest rate during the period ..........c.ceoriienienrninennesinese e 5.56% 5.30%
Weighted average interest rate at end of Period ..........ccoiccirerieenineminese e 5.52% .5.75%

At September 30, 1996, securities sold under agreements to repurchase had maturities ranging from 1 to
11 months with a weighted average maturity of 5 months.

The Bank pledged securities with amortized costs of approximately $3,045,000 and $1,580,000 and fair
values of approximately $3,117,000 and $1,603,000, respectively, at September 30, 1996 and 1995 as col-
lateral for securities sold under agreements to repurchase.

Note 11 - Other Borrowings

Other borrowings at September 30, 1996 consisted of $1,400,000 of advances from the Federal Reserve
Bank of Chicago with a 5.4% discount rate due October 1, 1996.

Note 12 - Employee Benefits

Profit Sharing Plan: The profit sharing plan covers
substantially all full-time employees and provides for
the Company, at its option and subject to a percent-
age of employee earnings limitation imposed by the
Internal Revenue Code, to contribute to a trust cre-
ated by the plan. Related expense for years ended
September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994 was $-0-,
$106,188 and $113,343, respectively.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP): In con-
junction with the stock conversion, the Company
established an ESOP for eligible employees.
Employees with 1,000 hours of employment with
the Bank and who have attained age 21 are eligible
to participate. The ESOP borrowed $1,534,100
from the Company to purchase 153,410 shares of
the Company’s common stock. Collateral for the
loan is the unearned shares of common stock pur-
chased with the loan proceeds by the ESOP. The
loan will be repaid principally from the Bank’s dis-
cretionary contributions to the ESOP over a period

of 8 years. The interest rate for the loan is 8%.
Shares purchased by the ESOP are held in suspense
for allocation among participants as the loan is
repaid. ESOP expense of $451,500, $358,613 and
$198,100 was recorded for the years ended
September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.
Contributions of $200,000, $218,800 and $198,100
were made to the ESOP during the years ended
September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.
Contributions to the ESOP and shares released
from suspense in an amount proportional to the
repayment of the ESOP loan are allocated among
ESOP participants on the basis of compensation in
the year of allocation. Benefits generally become
100% vested after seven years of credited service.
Prior to the completion of seven years of credited
service, a participant who terminates employment
for reasons other than death, normal retirement, or
disability receives a reduced benefit based on the
ESOP’s vesting schedule. Forfeitures are reallocated
among remaining participating employees, in the
same proportion as contributions. Benefits are




payable in the form of stock upon termination of
employment. The Bank’s contributions to the ESOP
are not fixed, so benefits payable under the ESOP
cannot be estimated.

ESOP participants are entitled to receive distribu-
tions from their ESOP accounts only upon termina-

tion of service. _

For the years ended September 30, 1996 and
1995, 20,000 and 21,880 shares, respectively, with
an average fair value of $22.58 and $16.39 per
share, respectively, were committed to be released.

The ESOP shares as of September 30 are as follows:

1996 1995 1994
Allocated Shares ..ot iiesns s sess s snesesasasimssanessessans 76,690 56,690 34,810
Uneamned Shares .......ccouuiececioniesieseiesisrensisessmsesesssesntesmsssmessmsssssssussneses 76,720 96,720 118,600
Total ESOP Shares .....cccveiecieierierrsericieressemintesiecsescsessss sessansssresseessasssnsees 153,410 153,410 153,410
Fair value of uneamed shares at September 30 ......ccccoceevercrievcrercricnennas $1,860,460 $1,934,400 $1,867,950
Stock Option and Incentive Plans: Certain officers and Incentive Plan (the “1995 Plan”). For the year

and directors of the Company and the Bank have
been granted options to purchase common stock of
the Company pursuant to the 1993 Stock Option
and Incentive Plan (the “1993 Plan™). For the year
ended September 30, 1996, options on 15,000
shares were granted at an exercise price of $22.50
per share and options on 500 shares were granted at
an exercise price of $23.63 per share and expire
January 22, 2006 and September 29, 2006, respec-
tively. For the year ended September 30, 1995,
options on 3,509 shares were granted at an exercise
price of $20.62 per share and expire January 22,
2005. For the year ended September 30, 1994,
options on 172,585 shares were granted at an exer-
cise price of $10.00 per share and expire September
20, 2003. Options on 9,450 common shares were
exercised at $10.00 per share during the year ended
September 30, 1996. No options were exercised
during the fiscal years ended September 30, 1995
and 1994. As of September 30, 1996, no options
have expired under the 1993 Plan.

Certain officers and directors of the Bank have
been granted options to purchase common stock of
the Company pursuant to the 1995 Stock Option

Note 13 - Income Taxes

ended September 30, 1996, options on 1,000 shares
were granted at an exercise price of $22.13 per share
and expire July 25, 2006 and options on 22,660
shares were granted at an exercise price of $23.63
per share and expire September 29, 2006. As of
September 30, 1996, no options have been exercised
or have expired under the 1995 Plan.

Management Recognition and Retention Plans:

The Company granted 4,794 and 70,952 (2,876 of
which have been forfeited under terms of the Plan
due to termination of service) restricted shares of the
Company’s common stock on May 23, 1994 and
September 20, 1993, respectively, to certain officers
of the Bank pursuant to a management recognition
and retention plan (the “Plan”). The holders of the
restricted shares have all of the rights of a sharehold-
er, except that they cannot sell, assign, pledge or
transfer any of the restricted shares during the
restricted period. The restricted shares vest at a rate
of 25% on each anniversary of the grant date.
Expense of $117,064, $208,159 and $381,897 was
recorded for these plans for the years ended
September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

The Company has been allowed a deduction of 8% of taxable income or on a specified experience formu-
la. The percentage-of-taxable income method was used for tax returns filed for the years ended September
30, 1995 and 1994 and is anticipated to be used for the year ended September 30, 1996. In future years
only the specified experience formula method will be allowed due to recent tax law changes.

Income tax expense for the years ended September 30 is summarized as follows:

199 1955

FEDERAL
CUITENIE <e.oveveeeeeeeeeee oo meeesereseseeeseeeseeeeessesssasasessss e sesseeseeessesssssereeese $1,735,099  $1,946,687  $1,348,519
DIEFEITEA ..o ereeeeeeereeceeeeessossiseesssssesssesesesesessseereeeeseesesesmsesmssararesese (282,756) 46,000 (59,700)
1,452,343 1,992,687 1,288,819

STATE

CUTTENE 1vevvvveeomeeseeeeeeseeesmsseesseesesesessmssseeseeseesseseseseseeseseeemssesssseessseecsmees 290,825 324,000 150,000
DEfEITEd weeoereeeeeereereeeeeeeeerrerereenee: st seeeseseresenecemsesrenee (46,845) 4,000 (5,300)
243,980 328,000 144,700
...................................................................... $1,696,323  $2320,687  $1,433,519




Total income tax expense differed from amounts computed using the U.S. Federal income tax rate of 34%
on income before income taxes as follows:

Years ended Septsmber 30, ' 1996 1995 1994
Income taxes at 34% Federal tax rate .............. eteemetereseeosesresssneresanarenraen $1,397,000 $1,995,000 $1,327,790

Increase (decrease) resulting from:
Bad debt deduction - HEt ......cceceerueerreerrerses e s s scenems e - - (34,000)
State income taxes - net of federal benefit........ccocoimiciciciciinicniennnn, 161,000 214,000 99,000
Excess of cost over net assets acquired ................ e 58,000 43,000 21,279
Excess of fair value of ESOP shares released over cost ........coceecrcecnenn, 86,000 48,000 -
10111 o 1T SR O OSSO (5,677) 20,687 19,450
Total INCOME tAX EXPENSE. ... vuerrmearmierrertretresiscsasssessesessseresessasasesass $1,696,323 $2,320,687 $1,433,519

The components of the net deferred tax asset (liability) recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 1996 and 1995 are as follows:

199% 1995
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:
5T I LYo $ 173,000 $ 228,000
Deferred 10an fEes ... ...t cr e s et n s e st e 140,000 104,000
Management iNCENHVE PIOZTAM ......occresierosmisstsnsssinssessssnscssrass s imitetesatsbane e sssemassseasanss 68,000 83,000
SAIF aSSESSIMEIIL. ... ueeeueeoveeersmearenaeanreasmeasessnensessaesseacmsaotesanarente bt e smEebmte e sabecbeeetienesranssnnan 472,000 -
L 31 1 1 Y 63,000 33,000
916,000 448,000
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES: .
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividend .........ccooeeiiiinnicmncnnicsninnnsnssnssesscstenessecsssnnens (452,000) (419,000)
ACCIUAL 10 €SN DASIS ....ooueeerecerceee et rse e r s s s sre s e s ennae s nan s (206,000) -
Net unrealized appreciation on securities available for sale .........ccocoucineersiinemricsecmrnionnens (18,324) (337,349)
ONET cvoeoeovoeeeoeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeoeseese e e ees e sesessse et esesesemmsesseeseeeeses et ee s esesesesereses s essres st esee (39,898) (18,864)
(716,222) (775,213)
Valuation allOWAanCe ..........ceeeeeiiceimrnensesesssesmsanice e ssssse s scsanss sosss shestssssaessamssnabesesassesannsaesn - -
Net deferred tax asset (Hability) .......ccevreeemeeecininenene v et sms s $ 199,778 $ (327,213)

Retained earnings at September 30, 1996 and 1995 includes approximately $6,744,000 and $6,200,000,
respectively, for which no deferred federal income tax liability has been recorded which represents bad
debt deductions for tax purposes only. Reduction of amounts so allocated for purposes other than tax bad
debt losses would create income for tax purposes only, which would be subject to the then-current
corporate income tax rate. The unrecorded deferred income tax liability on the above amount was approxi-

mately $2,300,000 and $2,100,000 at September 30, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

Note 14 - Capital Requirements and Restrictions on Retained Earnings

The Company has two primary subsidiaries, First Federal and Security. First Federal and Security are
subject to various regulatory capital requirements. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initi-
ate certain mandatory or discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material
effect on the financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, First Federal and Security must meet specific quantitative capital guidelines using
their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting prac-
tices. The requirements are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk
weightings and other factors.

Regulations require First Federal to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth below) of tangible
capital, leverage capital and risk-based capital. Management believes, as of September 30, 1996, that First
Federal meets the capital adequacy requirements.




The following is a reconciliation of First Federal’s capital under generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) to regulatory capital at September 30, 1996 and 1995:

Tangible Leverage Risk-Based
Capital Capital Capital
(Dollars in thousands)
GAAP capital at Septemnber 30, 1996 .......c.cocevicruecremmimecrae e snenens $ 34,398 $ 34,398 $ 34,398
Additional capital items and capital adjustments:
Net unrealized depreciation on securities available for sale ................ 11 11 1
Intangible aSSEtS .......ccecvuivrierricicieersrin et (2,279) (2,279) (2,279)
Investment in nonincludable subsidiaries ...........cccovveiecrervreececsrennn (787) (787) (787)
Less assets required to be deducted.........ccooococcueeccncreeniseeieceesvercacinces - - (51)
Includable allowance for loan losses........cooccoriccrececereriersseeseecrencrnens - - 1,792
Regulatory capital at September 30, 1996 ....o..oooveereovvceessreesrtreer s $ 31,343 § 31,343 § 33,084
GAAP capital at September 30, 1995 .......ccoocvenenerccrte e $ 35,036 $ 3503 $ 35,036
Additional capital items and capital adjustments:
Net unrealized appreciation on securities available for sale ................ (539) (539) (539)
INtangible ASSETS -...c.oiiiiceciecrer et rea e et ee s e seaeaas (1,690) (1,690) (1,690)
Investment in nonincludable subsidiaries .........cccoveereeererreerrcreinsseicnens (734) (734) (734)
Less assets required to be deducted.........oueircermericcinecnccreecrrmeieennene - - (74)
Includable allowance for loan losses ........ccc.ccveeeireimeesecreescieceeneeess - - 1,634
Regulatory capital at September 30, 1995 .....cvevreiresevrascsmersessimsrneremas -$ 32,073 $ 32,073 $ 33,633
First Federal’s actual capital and required capital amounts and ratios are presented below:
To Be Well
Requirement Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Cormrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 1996
Tangible Capital $31,343 9.04% $ 5,198 1.50% $10,396 3.00%
Leverage Capital $31,343 9.04% $10,396 3.00% $20,792 6.00%
Risk-Based Capital $33,084 16.36% $16,176 8.00% $20,220 10.00%
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 1995
Tangible Capital $32,073 12.37% $ 3,891 1.50% $ 7,781 3.00%
Leverage Capital $32,073 12.37% $ 7,781 3.00% $15,562 6.00%
Risk-Based Capital $33,633 20.42% $13,177 8.00% $16,471 10.00%
/

Regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision
limit the amount of dividends and other capital dis-
tributions that may be paid by a savings institution
without prior approval of the Office of Thrift
Supervision. The regulatory restriction is based on a
three-tiered system with the greatest flexibility being
afforded to well-capitalized (Tier 1) institutions.
First Federal is currently a Tier 1 institution.
Accordingly, First Federal can make, without prior
regulatory approval, distributions during a calendar
year up to 100% of its net income to date during the
calendar year plus an amount that would reduce by
one-half its “surplus capital ratio” (the excess over
its capital requirements) at the beginning of the cal-

endar year. Accordingly, at September 30, 1996,
approximately $8,000,000 of First Federal’s retained
earnings is potentially available for distribution to
the Company.

Quantitative measures established by regulation
to ensure capital adequacy require Security to main-
tain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the
table below) of total risk-based capital and Tier I
capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weight-
ed assets (as defined), and a leverage ratio consisting
of Tier I capital (as defined) to average assets (as
defined). Management believes, as of September 30,
1996, that Security meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it is subject.




The following is a reconciliation of Security’s capital under GAAP to regulatory capital at September 30,

199%e6:
Total
Tierl Leverage Risk-Based
Capital Capital Capital
(Dollars in thousands)
GAARP capital at September 30, 1996 .........ocoonrmmeereecnecnereeccssaseeaescens $ 5,860 $ 5,860 $ 5,860

Additional capital items and capital adjustments

INeangible aSSEts ......ecovemrremrmrmerenerrenreemrcee e s nesees
Includable allowance for loan losses.........cocveiemiecereecrenennne

Regulatory capital at September 30, 1996...........ccocevvereeeccrcnee.

As of December 31, 1995, the most recent notifi-
cation date, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation categorized Security as well capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt correc-
tive action. To be categorized as well capitalized
Security must maintain minimum, Tier I risk-based,

(2,811) (2,811) (2,811)

.............. 274

.............. $ 3,049 $ 3049 $ 3,323

Tier I leverage and total risk-based capital ratios as
set forth in the table below. There are no conditions
or events since that notification that management
believes have changed the institution’s category.

Security’s actual capital and required capital
amounts and ratios are presented below:

To Be Woll
Requirement Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Comrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 1996
Tier I Capital (to risk
weighted assets) $3,049 14.1% $865 4.0% $1,297 6.0%
Leverage Capital
(to average assets) $3,049 10.0% $1,220 4.0% $1,525 5.0%
Total Risk-Based Capital
(to risk weighted assets)  $3,323 15.4% $1,729 8.0% $2,161

Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company
makes various commitments to extend credit which
are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

At September 30, 1996 and 1995, loan commit-
ments approximated $20,671,000 and $12,818,000,
respectively, excluding undisbursed portions of loans
in process. Loan commitments at September 30,
1996 included commitments to originate fixed-rate
loans with interest rates ranging from 8.5% to
9.25% totaling $314,000, adjustable-rate loan com-
mitments with interest rates ranging from 8.13% to
11.00% totaling $14,723,000 and adjustable-rate
purchase loan commitments of $5,634,000 with
interest rates ranging from 9.25% to 9.50%. Loan
commitments at September 30, 1995 included com-
mitments to originate fixed-rate loans with interest
rates ranging from 7.75% to 11.75% totaling
$551,000, adjustable-rate loan commitments with
interest rates ranging from 7.75% to 10.75% total-
ing $9,059,000 and adjustable rate purchase loan

10.0%

commitments of $3,208,000 with interest rates rang-
ing from 8.75% to 9.38%. Commitments, which
are disbursed subject to certain limitations, extend
over various periods of time. Generally, unused
commitments are canceled upon expiration of the
commitment term as outlined in each individual con-
tract.

The exposure to credit loss in the event of non-
performance by other parties to financial instru-
ments for commitments to extend credit is represent-
ed by the contractual amount of those instruments.
The same credit policies and collateral requirements
are used in making commitments and conditional
obligations as are used for on-balance-sheet instru-
ments.

Since certain commitments to make loans and to
fund lines of credit and loans in process expire with-
out being used, the amount does not necessarily rep-
resent future cash commitments. In addition, com-
mitments used to extend credit are agreements to
lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of
any condition established in the contract.



Securities with amortized costs of approximately
$9,711,000 and $6,465,000 and fair values of
approximately $9,633,000 and $6,412,000 at
September 30, 1996 and 1995, respectively, were
pledged as collateral for public funds on deposit.

Securities with amortized costs of approximately
$2,404,000 and $999,000 and fair values of approx-
imately $2,456,000 and $1,006,000 at September
30, 1996 and 1995, respectively, were pledged as
collateral for individual, trust and estate deposits.

Under employment agreements with certain exec-

Note 16 - Parent Company Financial Statements

utive officers, certain events leading to separation
from the Company or the Bank could result in cash
payments totaling approximately $2,500,000 as of
September 30, 1996.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to
certain claims and legal actions arising in the ordi-
nary course of business. In the opinion of manage-
ment, after consultation with legal counsel, the ult-
mate disposition of these matters is not expected to
have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial position of the Company.

Presented below are condensed financial statements for the parent company, First Midwest Financial, Inc.

Condensed Balance Sheets September 30, 1996 and 1995
1996 1995
ASSETS
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES...........c.oi et reee et v et e e s et e s $ 1,383,318 $ 1,161,376
Securities available fOr Sale ... ..o e ne e s 1,433,285 694,950
Investment in subsidiary banks ..........cccceruiuiireerrriee e s e e v eenes 40,258,011 35,036,350
Loan receivable from ESOP ... iiierccceeresueacaecmssmamssmessmessmesseecsaecas ssseeeaseamasecs 767,200 967,200
OMIIET @SSEES —..o...cecvarrarercerscimsereaseacaenesseere s masstaessanteamarasessmemeanmseaeserast s sesenesaasantvans sanesmten 61,431 172,190
TOUAL SSELS e rer e eeeeeereemmemsmeeseessessseseeeeseeseeeeseseeeeseeesseesemsssesssesessseseeseesesseecesreseesemsene $43,903245  $38,032,066
LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other Labilities.........cccceeerrrrmanessmscseessmrreseeciesse e ssasesesessrassmsesnss $ 693,543 § 19,370
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
COMIMON SEOCK ..-rocueeeiecireircmseerearse s e e sensseeseesescarasstesmvaneamsetsaneseansesmssessmsateemssmsaseas 19,905 19,915
Additional paid-in CAPItal ......ccvececrieeirre e e st e s 20,862,551 19,310,045
Retained earnings - substantially reStricted.........ocoueeeeimrincerseecsenuneere et ease e s ees 23,748,383 22,080,579
Net unrealized appreciation on securities available for sale,
net of tax of $18,324 in 1996 and $340,190in 1995 .......cccerrececretrecece e e 28,698 571,564
Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares... ........cooceeeetieerecencrennicienesceeecseeceene (767,200) (967,200)
TTeasury STOCK, Gt COSL ....cioieerierrceneerar s ctrasese e sce et soe s r e rsc s s ar s s b e an st e e spnanamans (682,635) (3,002,207)
Total shareholders’ eqUILY .........ccccccoeieicecerrinsnrsc e s sems e ssares e eesremsaece s 43,209,702 38,012,696
Total liabilities and shareholders’ eqUILY ......eceeerureermireemneesaceememenesemeneeeneneseres $43,903,245  $38,032,066




Condensed Statements of lncome

Years onded September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994

1936 1995 1994
Dividend income from subsidiary banks ...........ccoirnvcicimicimniiiiienne $9,500,000 $1,800,000 $4,500,000
INEETESt INCOME «...vereueecaeecemcseeememsmereeerneceacnressasermbamsessae 219,546 177,901 238,357
Gain on sales of securities available for sale, net 51,237 51,250 46,342
9,770,783 2,029,151 4,784,699
OPErating XPeMNSES ......ccoceovriseerrmisstasssnsssmtesmsesmtsmesssmssestses st amsssnassnsssass 182,743 132,175 175,586
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND EQUITY IN
UNDISTRIBUTED NET INCOME OF SUBSIDIARIES ..........ccccocieimieecns 9,588,040 1,896,976 4,609,113
INCOME tAX EXPEIISE .....overcrmertrcrnicnccsmesrteiersasememtessscsrteseasemasan s nan s ansanans 53,000 50,000 70,482
INCOME BEFORE EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED NET INCOME
" OF SUBSIDIARIES ..o cevsereesersossorsessensses oo ossons oo 9,535,040 1,846,976 4,538,631
(Distributions in excess of) equity in undistribﬁted
net income of subsidiary banks ........ccooeeireiccicincn e (7,121,475) 1,697,376 (1,809,720)
NET INCOME.......ucutimrusieerrcenesaseessessamssasses s sseasmssesoassessemsmsmsstsasscssescne $2,413,565 $3,544,352 $2,728,911
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows Years ended September 30, 1996, 1995 and 1994
1996 1995 1994
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INEE ETICOIMIE +rrvveveessoeeeee e ssssoessesereeseemsmeeemseneresesseeereneeeeeressseesseeen $2,413,565  $3,544,352  $2,728,911
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Distribution in excess of (equity in undistributed) net income
of subsidiary banks ....c.cc.coieeercimn it e 7,121,475 (1,697,376) 1,809,720
Amortization of recognition and retention plan ...........ccocceecnniuas 117,064 208,159 381,897
Gain on sales of securities available for sale, net ........ccccocoveecnecee (51,237) (51,250) (46,342)
Change in Other @SSEtS .......o.ovi e crcesoces e ecem s esene e ecsssosasieas 110,759 291,107 (463,297)
Change in accrued expenses and other liabilities............ccocvceuuees 721,109 54,984 (82,764)
Net cash from operating activities .........coceoveermiressmssscsscesnsnnis 10,432,735 2,349,976 4,328,125
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of securities available for sale.........cccoeeirriciniceniecrncesircnens (1,014,438) (617,562) (333,550)
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale ..........ccoceveeenccnees 338,750 241,875 162,378
Purchase of Community Financial Systems, Inc. .....c.ccooocececrvieircennnnes - - (9,929,443)
Purchase of Iowa Bancorporation, Inc. ........ccoeieisismissmsnsmsnssesieeans (6,529,615) - -
Purchase of Central West Bancorporation ...........cococecinccsecscscecanes (1,923,519) - -
Repayments on loan receivable from ESOP ...........coeieiiieiicncinicenn. 200,000 218,800 198,100
Net cash from investment ACHVIHES .........coerercieersersireiscssimsnmesnins (8,928,822) (156,887) (9,902,515)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends paid .-...ccoceevoeireerreicecreeeecc et (745,761) (515,095) -
Proceeds from exercise of Stock OPHONS .....ceceveuceeuieerinesieersenescsacaes 94,500 - -
Purchase of treasury Stock........cereeueerireeernearesinsesr e e (630,710) (932,030) (2,070,177)
Net cash from financing activities ........cc.veireereeerseeerrereresnessscnecas (1,281,971) (1,447,125) (2,070,177)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents .........cooccoooiivince 221,942 745,964 (7,644,567)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.........coccevrerrccincnsnninee 1,161,376 415,412 8,059,979
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.....cc.coieccenrnrinceenae $1,383,318 $1,161,376 $ 415412
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of common stock for purchase of Central West Bancorporation  $3,936,634



The extent to which the Company may pay cash dividends to shareholders will depend on the cash cur-
rently available at the Company, as well as the ability of the subsidiary banks to pay dividends to the

Company (see Note 14).

~ Note 17 - Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarter Ended
December 31 March 31 June30  Septsmber 30
FISCAL YEAR 199%6:
Total INLEreSt INCOME vervvererenereereercrerrereseeseeen $5,363,332  $5,962,258  $6,499,056  $6,512,819
Total interest eXpense ......cc.coveeiieeeresienvesecsnns 2,960,154 3,407,485 3,735,106 3,875,825
Net iNLEreSt INCOME.....o..veersesereerecesomseesssssssrens 2,403,138 2,554,773 2,763,950 2,636,994
Provision for loan losses ...........cccoecveurrecencenn 30,000 30,000 30,000 10,000
Net INCOME .-oooocnemreeeire e s e enns 776,845 726,806 892,181 17,733
Earnings per share (fully diluted)
NEL INCOME ernemrmrenrerreaeeme s ieceescecenne $ A3 $ 41 $ .50 $ .01
FISCAL YEAR 1995:
Total INterest MCOME wermvrrmernrrrrrereoeerrereeeeene $5202,586  $5,558,039  $5,162,491  $5,130,354
Total iNterest EXPense . ..coe.ueeeercrcrereeenssaeas 2,815,729 3,154,619 2,897,007 2,781,369
INEE INLEFESE MCOME -erverreereerenrereereerseassseeseesee 2,386,857 2,403,420 2,265,484 2,348,985
Provision for loan losses .....c....coceeeeceicienn. 30,000 30,000 130,000 60,000
NEE NCOME +evererermnmenneereemerereeeeeereseeseeeeeeee 776,494 774,220 1,262,075 731,563
Earnings per share (fully diluted)
Net IICOME ..coocerreecrreseermecessesanteeeesamesranes $ 43 $ 44 $ 72 $ A1
FISCAL YEAR 1994:
Total interest INCOME ......ccovvveceacreeeeeneacearens $2,741,732 $2,894. 417 $4,506,061 $5,010,481
Total interest Xpense .......c.ueeeecrcrcrereeeecrcscanas 1,355,277 1,211,200 2,169,440 2,546,577
Net interest income...........c....... 1,386,455 1,683,217 2,336,621 2,463,904
Provision for loan losses - 25,000 - 80,000
Income before cumulative
effects of changes in
accounting principles ... 382,994 601,972 844,765 642,017
Cumulative effects of changes
in accounting principles ........ccccoveceieena. 257,163 - - -
Net INCOME .nveeemrenrcnrenetee e e eanna 640,157 601,972 844,765 642,017

Note 18 - Fair Values of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of
Financial Instruments,” requires that the Company
disclose estimated fair value amounts of its financial
instruments. It is management’s belief that the fair
values presented below are reasonable based on the
valuation techniques and data available to the
Company as of September 30, 1996 and 1995, as
more fully described below. It should be noted that
the operations of the Company are managed from a

going concern basis and not a liquidation basis. As
a result, the ultimate value realized for the financial
instruments presented could be substantially differ-
ent when actually recognized over time through the
normal course of operations. Additionally, a sub-
stantial portion of the Company’s inherent value is
the Bank’s capitalization and franchise value.
Neither of these components have been given con-
sideration in the presentation of fair values below.



The following presents the carrying amount and estimated fair value of the financial instruments held by
the Company at September 30, 1996 and 1995. This information is presented solely for compliance with

SFAS No. 107 and is subject to change over time based on a variety of factors.

1996 1995
Carrying Estimated Canying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
SELECTED ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ........ccococemreecoceccricciccecne $14,328,652 $14,329,000 $ 4,615,712 $ 4,616,000
Interest-bearing deposits in
other financial iNSHEUHONS .......cceeeeeremreeeeeereenerneenaecas 300,000 300,000 - -
Securities available for sale 109,491,558 109,492,000 70,232,092 70,232,000
Loans receivable, Net .......cvccecvievercieeeeneeenens 243,533,519 243,654,000 178,551,501 181,148,000
FHLB Stock .....ooceeeeeeec e 5,524,700 5,525,000 3,915,300 3,915,000
Accrued interest receivable 5,029,047 5,029,000 2,745,747 2,746,000
SELECTED LIABILITIES:
Noninterest bearing demand
AEPOSIES crrrrrerereresesessreeerseerssmmsemmeeeeseeseeresseeeseseneee (5452,911)  (5452,000)  (2,076,671)  (2,077,000)
Savings, NOW and money
market demand deposits .......cooveoeeerimerrmercernereeeneas (49,358,478) (49,358,000) (40,407,661) (40,408,000)
Other time certificates of
EPOSIE -ovmereeme s v reac s s e s m s enmes e se s e amsenmeenmans (178,594,337) (178,762,000) (129,308,665) (130,292,000)
Total deposits (233,405,726) (233,572,000) (171,792,997) (172,777,000)

Advances from FHLB ...t (102,287,803) (102,185,000) (51,098,388) (51,123,000)

Securities sold under

agreements tO repurchase .......covcveeirveevvemeniensnecscenenns
Other BOITOWINES. ... cuiecucemeiccrerieereveasse st amsraseeeceee e
Advances from borrowers

(2,789,918)  (2,790,000)  (1,149,918)  (1,148,000)
(1,400,000)  (1,400,000) -

for taxes and INSUTANCE .........ccemeeceverceerceeececeemeneeas (490,243) (490,000) (501,522) (501,000)

- Accrued interest payable ........c.ccooceoenerennnc s (1,271,465) (1,271,000} (788,008) (788,000)
OFF-BALANCE SHEET INSTRUMENTS:

LOoan COMMILMENES ....cvcvureerseessnresressmssensrresreesssnsesesnens $(20,671,000) $ - $(12,818,000) $ -

The following sets forth the methods and assump-
tions used in determining the fair value estimates for
the Company’s financial instruments at September
30, 1996 and 1995.

Cash and Cash Equivalent: The carrying amount
of cash and short-term investment is assumed to
approximate the fair value.

Interest-bearing Deposits In Other Financial
Institutions: The carrying amount of interest-bear-
ing deposits in other financial institutions is assumed
to approximate the fair value.

Securities Available For Sale: Quoted market prices
or dealer quotes were used to determine the fair
value of securities available for sale.

Loans Receivable, Net: The fair value of loans
receivable, net was estimated by discounting the
future cash flows using the current rates at which
similar loans would be made to borrowers with sim-
tlar credit ratings and for similar remaining maturi-

ties. When using the discounting method to deter-
mine fair value, loans were gathered by homoge-
neous groups with similar terms and conditions and
discounted at a target rate at which similar loans
would be made to borrowers as of September 30,
1996 and 1995. The fair value of loans held for sale
is determined by outstanding commitments from
investments or current investor yield requirements
calculated on an aggregate loan basis. In addition,
when computing the estimated fair value for all
loans, allowances for loan losses have been subtract-
ed from the calculated fair value for consideration of
credit issues.

FHLB Stock: The fair value of such stock approxi-
mates book value since the Bank is able to redeem
this stock with the Federal Home Loan Bank at par
value.

Accrued Interest Receivable: The carrying amount
of accrued interest receivable is assumed to approxi-
mate the fair value.



Deposits: The fair value of deposits were determined
as follows: (i) for noninterest bearing deposits, sav-
ings, NOW and money market demand deposits,
since such deposits are immediately withdrawable,
fair value is determined to approximate the carrying
value (the amount payable on demand); (ii) for other
time certificates of deposit, the fair value has been
estimated by discounting expected future cash flows
by the current rates offered as of September 30,
1996 and 1995 on certificates of deposit with similar
remaining maturities. In accordance with SFAS No.
107, no value has been assigned to the Bank’s long-
term relationships with its deposit customers (core
value of deposits intangible) since such intangible is
not a financial instrument as defined under SFAS
No. 107.

Advances from FHLB: The fair value of such
advances was estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using current interest rates as of
September 30, 1996 and 1995, for advances with
similar terms and remaining maturities.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
and Other Borrowings: The fair value of securities
sold under agreements to repurchase and other bor-
rowings was estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using derived interest rates approx-
imating market as of September 30, 1996 and 1995
over the contractual maturity of such borrowings.

Advances From Borrowers for Taxes and Insurance:
The carrying amount of advances from borrowers
for taxes and insurance is assumed to approximate
the fair value.

Note 19 - Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Accrued Interest Payable: The carrying amount of
accrued interest payable is assumed to approximate
the fair value.

Loan Commitments: The commitments to originate
and purchase loans have terms that are consistent
with current market terms. Accordingly, the
Company estimates that the face amounts of these
commitments are not significant.

Limitations: It must be noted that fair value esti-
mates are made at a specific point in time, based on
relevant market information about the financial
instrument. Additionally, fair value estimates are
based on existing on- and off-balance sheet financial
instruments without attempting to estimate the value
of anticipated future business, customer relation-
ships and the value of assets and liabilities that are
not considered financial instruments. These esti-
mates do not reflect any premium or discount that
could result from offering the Company’s entire
holdings of a particular financial instrument for sale
at one time. Furthermore, since no market exists for
certain of the Company’s financial instruments, fair
value estimates may be based on judgments regard-
ing future expected loss experience, current econom-
ic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial
instruments, and other factors. These estimates are
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and
matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot
be determined with a high level of precision.
Changes in assumptions as well as tax considera-
tions could significantly affect the estimates.
Accordingly, based on the limitations described
above, the aggregate fair value estimates are not
intended to represent the underlying value of the
Company, on either a going concern or a liquidation
basis. ’

On December 29, 1995, the Company purchased all of the common stock of Iowa Bancorp for
$8,000,000 in cash. In conjunction with the acquisition, liabilities were assumed as follows:

Fair value of assets acquired...........cccceereevemicimeceeiceeenssescenas
Cash Paid oottt e e

Liabilities assumed.......ccccoioearieirimeeiiinecceeeeersteeme e e s

$25,429,434
(8,000,000}

$17,429,434

On September 30, 1996, the Company, purchased all of the common stock of Central West for
$1,312,474 in cash and issued 171,158 common shares at a market value of $23 per share. - In conjunction
with the acquisition, liabilities were assumed as follows:

Fair value of assets acquired .........c.voeeerecrieeinineorsceeee e,

Cash paid ...t e s

Common stock issued

Liabilities assumed

$35,577,247
(1,312,474)
(3,936,634)

$30,328,139
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pensation/Personnel Committee; member of the Stock
Option Committee.

JEANNE PARTLOW - Member
of the Board of Directors for
First Midwest Financial, Inc.
Mrs, Partlow is President of
the Iowa Savings Bank Division
of First Federal, Des Moines,
Jowa. She was President, Chief
Executive Officer and Chair
of the Board of Iowa Savings
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Information

Corporate Headquarters Independent Auditors
First Midwest Financial, Inc. Crowe, Chizek and Company LLP
First Federal Building 330 East Jefferson Blvd.
Fifth at Erie P.O.Box 7
P.O. Box 1307 South Bend, Indiana 46624
Storm Lake, Iowa 50588 . .
Stockholder Services and Investor Relations
Annual Meeting of Stockholders Stockholders desiring to change the name, address or
The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will convene at ownership of stock, to report lost certificates or to
1 p.m. on Monday, January 27, 1997. The meeting consolidate accounts should contact the corporation’s
will be held in the Board Room of First Federal transfer agent:
Savings Bank of the Midwest, Fifth at Erie, Storm Registrar 8¢ Transfer Company
Lake, Iowa. Further information with regard to this 10 Commerce Drive
meeting can be found in the proxy statement. Cranford, New Jersey 07016
1-800-368-5948
General Counsel
Mack, Hansen, Gadd, Armstrong Analysts, investors and others seeking a copy of the
& Schiller, P.C. Form 10-KSB or other public financial information
316 EaSt Slxth Stl'eet Should contact:
Storm Lake, lowa 50588 Investor Relations - Attention: Kristi L. Frey,
Special Counsel First Midwest Financial, Inc.,
Silver, Freedman & Taff, L.L.P. llilgt l];i:ieliaf)l()%mldmg’ Fifth ac Erie,
1100 New YOl'k Avenue, NW Sl-tor-m Lake, Io:ava 50588
Washington, DC 20005-3934 Telephone 712-732-4117

Stock Market
Information

First Midwest Financial, Inc.’s common stock trades on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol
“CASH”. The Wall Street Journal publishes daily trading information for our stock under the abbreviation
“FstMidwFnl” in the National Market Listing.

1995 1996 Fiscal Year 1995 Fiscal Year 1996

Dividend Dividend

Paid Paid Low High Low High
First quarter .. ... e $.075 $.11 $14.25 $16.00 $19.75 $23.50
Second quarter .............. $.075 $.11 $1425  $16.25 $22.00  $23.50
Third quarter ............... $.075 $.11 $14.25 $17.50 $21.75 $24.25
Fourth quarter............... $.075 $.11 $17.38 $21.75 $21.75 $24.75

Dividend payment decisions are made with consideration of a variety of factors including earnings, finan-
cial condition, market considerations and regulatory restrictions. Restrictions on dividend payments are
described in Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report.

As of September 30, 1996, there were 1,945,735 shares of common stock outstanding which were held by
338 stockholders of record, and 205,804 shares subject to outstanding options. The stockholders of record
number does not reflect approximately 620 persons or entities who hold their stock in nominee or “street”
name.

As of September 30, 1996, the following securities firms indicated they were acting as market makers for
First Midwest Financial, Inc., stock:

Everen Securities, Inc. Howe, Barnes & Johnson, Inc.

Herzog, Heine, Geduld, Inc.
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